
 
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about 
Township Information 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, October 21, 2019 
7:00 PM 

  

 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. CITIZENS INPUT  

 
III. SPECIAL REPORTS 

1. Schlow Library 
2. Centre Region Parks & Recreation Authority 
3. LED Street Lighting 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. October 7, 2019, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

1. Public Hearing Ordinance on Chapter 27 Zoning 
2. Public Hearing Ordinance on Chapter 22 Subdivision & Land Development 
3. Public Hearing Resolution on Personnel Policy Manual - Drug Free Workplace 
4. Discussion on Amendments to Official Zoning Map 

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consent Agenda 
2. Public Hearing Resolution Authorizing Reimbursement Agreement with PaDOT on Vehicle Detection 

Upgrade 
3. Public Hearing Resolution for Adoption of Revised Sidewalk Snow Removal Map 
 

VI. REPORTS 

1. COG Committee Reports  
2. Other Regional Reports 
3. Staff Reports 

 
VII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 

VIII. CALENDAR ITEMS – OCTOBER/NOVEMBER 

2. Open House - Bicycle Implementation Plan, Ferguson Township, Wednesday,  
   October 30, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 

3.   Trick or Treat Night in Ferguson Township, Thursday, October 31st, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, October 21, 2019 
7:00 p.m. 

   
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. CITIZEN’S INPUT 

 
III. SPECIAL REPORTS          20 minutes 

 
1. Schlow Library – Lewis Steinberg 
2. Centre Region Parks & Recreation Authority – Bill Keough 
3. LED Street Lighting – David Modricker 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. October 7, 2019, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
1. A PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE 

COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, REPEALING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 27, ZONING 
AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 27, ZONING.    10 minutes 

 
Narrative 
The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on the proposed Chapter 27, Zoning Ordinance. The 
Ferguson Township Planning and Zoning Department along with Environmental Planning and Design 
(EPD) have been working over the past two years to update the Township’s Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Throughout the process, staff has worked with a Zoning and SALDO Steering Committee made up of 
residents, local realtors, business owners, farmers, Planning Commission members, professional 
planners, an arborist, attorney, Builders Association, and the Chamber of Business and Industry. An 
Agricultural Ad Hoc Committee was formed to review the Agricultural Zoning Districts in the Township. 
The Planning Commission has reviewed this document as well as the Centre Region Planning 
Commission. Several special meetings of the Board of Supervisors, Staff and EPD were held to review 
recommendations by the various groups and agencies.  
 
The proposed Zoning Ordinance has been made available for review at the Ferguson Township 
Municipal Building, 3147 Research Drive, State College, PA during normal business hours and at 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us. 
 
This hearing is for the purpose of receiving public comment only. The Board is asked to continue the 
public hearing until November 4th to allow proper time to re-advertise substantive changes that were 
made to the draft. A link to the webpage including the draft ordinance can be found below. 
 
Ferguson Township Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Amendments 

 

https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/planning-zoning/pages/zoning-ordinance-and-subdivision-and-land-develoment-ordinance-amendments


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 21, 2019 
Page 2 

Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors continue the public hearing on the draft Zoning 
Ordinance amendment until November 4, 2019. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors continue the public hearing.  

  
2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE 

COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, REPEALING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 22, 
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 22, 
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT.      10 minutes 

 
Narrative 
The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on the proposed Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance. The Ferguson Township Planning and Zoning Department along with 
Environmental Planning and Design (EPD) have been working over the past two years to update the 
Township’s Subdivision and Land Development (SALDO) Ordinance. 
 
Throughout the process, staff has worked with a Zoning and SALDO Steering Committee made up of 
residents, local realtors, business owners, farmers, Planning Commission members, professional 
planners, an arborist, attorney, Builders Association, and the Chamber of Business and Industry. An 
Agricultural Ad Hoc Committee was formed to review the Agricultural Zoning Districts in the Township. 
The Planning Commission has reviewed this document as well as the Centre Region Planning 
Commission. Several special meetings of the Board of Supervisors, Staff and EPD were held to review 
recommendations by the various groups and agencies.  
 
The proposed Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance is available for review at the Ferguson 
Township Municipal Building, 3147 Research Drive, State College, PA during normal business hours 
and at www.twp.ferguson.pa.us. 
 
This hearing is for the purpose of receiving public comment only. The Board is asked to continue the 
public hearing until November 4th to allow proper time to re-advertise substantive changes that were 
made to the draft. A link to the webpage including the draft ordinance can be found below. 
 
Ferguson Township Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Amendments 

 
Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors continue the public hearing on the draft 
Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance amendment until November 4, 2019. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors continue the public hearing.  

 
3. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 

PENNSYLVANIA AMENDING THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL BY 
AMENDING SECTION 34, DRUG FREE WORKPLACE.     5 minutes 

 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the resolution as advertised for public hearing amending 
the Township’s Drug Free Workplace Policy and the Drug & Alcohol Testing Policy. The policies 
are included with the Personnel Policy Manual and apply to Non-Uniformed Personnel.  The 
purpose of the amendment is to address permissive use of medical marijuana as provided for 
in the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act adopted in 2016.  Per the statute, Township 
personnel required to possess Commercial Driver’s Licenses may still be prohibited from using 

https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/planning-zoning/pages/zoning-ordinance-and-subdivision-and-land-develoment-ordinance-amendments
http://twp.ferguson.pa.us


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 21, 2019 
Page 3 

marijuana for medicinal or recreational purposes.  Law enforcement officials are prohibited from 
using medicinal marijuana by the Municipal Police Officers’ Education and Training 
Commission.  The Commission has adopted a guideline establishing that it will not certify law 
enforcement officers under PA Act 120 who have been prescribed medical marijuana.  Under 
the policy, the only personnel permitted to use the substance would be those non-uniformed, 
non-CDL employees who have been duly prescribed the medication and who provide proper 
notification to the Township. In addition, minor changes were also made to the Drug & Alcohol 
Testing Policy to be in compliance with the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration. Both 
policies as redlined and final formats have been provided with the agenda, as well. 
 
Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution amending the Ferguson 
Township Personnel Policy Manual by amending Section 34, Drug Free Workplace and Section 35, Drug 
& Alcohol Testing Policy. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.  

 
4. DISCUSSION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP OFFICIAL ZONING MAP. 

            15 minutes 
 

Narrative 
The Board will recall that amendments to the Zoning Map were initially discussed as part of the overall 
changes being made to the Zoning and Subdivision and Land Development Ordinances.  However, after 
some thought about potential changes to the Village District; rezoning parcels located in Rock Spring; 
and potentially rezoning certain areas of Rural Agricultural inside the Regional Growth Boundary on 
property owned by Penn State University, the decision was made to delay the approval of the amended 
Zoning Map until further discussion takes place.  The Board is asked to begin discussing these changes 
now and establish a desired timeframe in which to proceed with the amended Zoning Map.  Ms. 
Aneckstein will introduce the item and briefly review the notification and advertisement requirements of 
the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code.  Below is a link to the currently-adopted Official Zoning 
Map of Ferguson Township.  The last amendment to the map was made on January 21, 2019, to 
establish the Sourcewater Protection Overlay District.  
 
Ferguson Township Official Zoning Map 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors discuss the process and desired timeframe to amend the Ferguson 
Township Official Zoning Map.  

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA         5 minutes 

a. Special Events Permit – Cranksgiving 
 

2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA AUTHORIZING THE SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO EXECUTE 
A REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR UPGRADING AND INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE VEHICLE DETECTION UPGRADE AT EXISTING SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS. 
            5 minutes 
 

https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/sites/fergusonpa/files/uploads/2019_zoning_map_with_sourcewater.pdf


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 21, 2019 
Page 4 

Narrative 
Earlier this year, the Township was advised that it was awarded a Green Light-Go Grant from PennDOT 
for the 2018 round of applications.  The grant is for the continued upgrading of traffic signal detection for 
vehicles, motorcycles, and bicycles.  This year’s grant is for a $100,000 project with 20% matching funds 
and 80% grant funds.  To receive the grant award, the Township needs to sign the grant agreement in 
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s dotGrants online program.  Provided with the agenda is a 
resolution for the Board’s approval as required to authorize the Township Secretary to execute the grant 
agreement.  This project is included in the approved 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program budget. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Secretary of 
the Board of Supervisors to execute the Green Light-Go Program Grant/Reimbursement Agreement with 
the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation using dotGrants and to execute all future documents 
related to this Grant. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.  

 
3. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 

PENNSYLVANIA REPEALING RESOLUTION 2018-25 BY ADOPTING A REVISED SIDEWALK 
SNOW REMOVAL MAP.         5 minutes 

 
Narrative 
Pursuant to Chapter 21, Section 207 of the Ferguson Township Code of Ordinances, the Board of 
Supervisors adopts a sidewalk snow removal map annually identifying the sections of public sidewalk 
that fall under the provision of the ordinance requiring sidewalks be kept clear of snow and ice. The map 
assists the Township’s Ordinance Enforcement Officer in identifying new sections of sidewalk, as well 
as areas that are exempt from the requirements of the ordinance. Provided with the agenda is a copy of 
the resolution as advertised for public hearing, which includes the map attachment as Exhibit “A.”  Also 
provided with the agenda is a PDF version of the map so that it can be viewed at a higher resolution. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution repealing Resolution 2018-
25 by adopting a revised sidewalk snow removal map. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.  

 
VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS                10 minutes 

a. Public Safety Committee 
b. Finance Committee 

 
2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS        5 minutes 

 
3. STAFF REPORTS          10 minutes 

a. Township Manager 
b. Public Works Director 
c. Planning & Zoning Director 
d. Chief of Police 

  



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 21, 2019 
Page 5 

 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – OCTOBER/NOVEMBER 

a. Open House for the Bicycle Implementation Plan, Wednesday, October 30, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
b. Trick or Treat Night in Ferguson Township, Thursday, October 31st, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 





TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 


Subject: 
Drug Free Workplace 


Date of Adoption: 
April 20, 2015 


Section Page No. 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform 


Date of Revision: 34.0 34-1


{DocNo=00649769.1 }


DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 


1. In accordance with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Township is mandated
to establish a policy consistent with provisions of the Act regarding a drug free
workplace.


2. It is the policy of the Township of Ferguson to prohibit and deem unlawful the
manufacture, distribution, digestion, possession or use of a controlled substance in
the workplace as defined by Section 102 of the Controlled Substance Act (21 U.S.C.
802).  Employees engaging in such unlawful acts shall face appropriate personnel
action up to and including termination in accordance with Section 29 of the
Personnel Policy.


3. All employees shall be provided a copy of this policy and the Drug Free Workplace 
Act of 1988.  New employees will be required to acknowledge this policy and to 
abide by the terms of the policy. 


4. Any employee who is convicted of any criminal drug related crime occurring in the
workplace shall notify the Township Manager in writing of the violation no later than
five (5) calendar days after such conviction.


5. The Township shall be required to notify the appropriate contracting State or Federal
agency in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice from the
employee of the violation, or conviction, of the drug related crime.


6. The Pennsylvania legislature passed the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act in
2016, legalizing the use of medical marijuana within the Commonwealth under 
certain limited circumstances.  As a result, the Township recognizes the lawful right 
to utilize medical marijuana outside of the workplace and under certain limited 
circumstances, if lawfully certified to do so and pursuant to the provisions stated 
herein. However, marijuana remains an illegal  Schedule I controlled substance 
under Federal law, including Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration regulations. 
As a result, all use or possession of marijuana in the workplace, whether medicinal 
or recreational, is strictly prohibited. Furthermore, use of marijuana is prohibited in all 
circumstances for Township CDL drivers and law enforcement officers, including off 
duty medicinal use as provided for under state law. 


If a Non-CDL/Non-law enforcement employee receives certification as a licensed 
user of medical marijuana in the Commonwealth, the employee must notify the 
Employer of the certification, or updates to any certification, and provide a copy of 
the certification immediately.  After notification, the Employer will meet with the 
employee to discuss the parameters of the employee’s usage of medical marijuana, 


Deleted:  for employees engaged in projects or activities 
funded by State or Federal Funds


Commented [JA2]: Do you provide a copy of the Act to 
employees? If not, delete that reference. It is not required that 
provide a copy of the Act.  


Deleted: ¶


Formatted: Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian text,
Don't adjust space between Asian text and numbers
Deleted: 6.


Deleted: Employer


Deleted:  as a licensed user in the Commonwealth, and will 
not restrict the lawful ability to use medical marijuana outside 
the workplace.


Deleted: use, whether medicinal or recreational, 


Deleted: as a


Commented [JA3]: MPOETC has issued a policy stating 
that medical marijuana certification is disqualifying for police 
officers. I know this policy states it is only for non-uniform, but 
I think it should make clear that police officers may not use 
medical marijuana.  


Deleted: As a result, employees whose positions are funded, 
in part by federal funds and are subjected to mandatory drug-
free workplace requirements, including CDL drivers, are 
prohibited from using marijuana at any time, whether 
medicinal or recreational.


Deleted: determine


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: potential 







TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 


Subject: 
Drug Free Workplace 


Date of Adoption: 
April 20, 2015 


Section Page No. 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform 


Date of Revision: 34.0 34-2


{DocNo=00649769.1 }


compliance with Township policies,  and the employee’s ability to  perform duties in a 
safe and efficient manner. The employee’s job functions will be a factor in such 
evaluation. For example, the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act provides that 
patients may be prohibited by an employer from performing any duty which could 
result in a public health or safety risk while under the influence of medical marijuana, 
and may be prohibited from performing any task deemed to be life threatening. 
Under the Act, a patient also may not perform any job duties at heights or in confined 
spaces, while under the influence of medical marijuana. The Employer will also 
determine whether the medical condition which necessitates the usage of medical 
marijuana constitutes a disability under Americans with Disabilities Act, thereby 
requiring an interactive discussion of the employee’s ability to perform job functions 
and potential reasonable accommodations, if any.  


While the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act has legalized the usage of medical 
marijuana for certified medical use, the Employer is not required to accommodate 
the use or possession of medical marijuana on the property or premises of any place 
of employment, nor is the Township mandated to allow an employee to be under the 
influence of medical marijuana while in the workplace or work while under the 
influence of medical marijuana when the employee's conduct falls below the 
standard of care normally accepted for that position.  As such, all employees, 
whether certified as a user of medical marijuana or not, are subject to the 
prohibitions in Section 29 of the Personnel Policy. 


7. In lieu of or in addition to appropriate personnel actions, the Township Manager, or
his designee, may require an employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State,
or local health, law enforcement or other appropriate agency.


8. The Township of Ferguson has in place an Employee Assistance Program that
includes assistance to those employees with drug and alcohol problems.  The 
program is available through the Center for Mental Health, located at 3939 South 
Atherton Street, employees may call (814) 867-0670.  


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Deleted: taken in accordance with medical instructions, and 
whether such usage will cause the employee to violate 
Employer policies or affect  and the employee’s your ... [1]


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: complete your 


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Formatted ... [2]
Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: , which necessitates the usage of medical ... [3]
Formatted ... [4]
Deleted: the essential job functions and potential reasonable ... [5]
Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering, Tab
stops: Not at  0.25"


Formatted ... [6]
Deleted: in


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: workplace


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: it 


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: authorize 


Formatted ... [7]
Deleted: Subsequently


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Deleted: 7.












 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-1 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING 


I.  PURPOSE: 


A. Ferguson Township has a commitment to provide a safe and healthful 
workplace for its employees and to ensure quality services to our residents.  


B.  The purpose of this Policy is to promote a safe and healthful 
workplace; to assist those employees who are in need of assistance through 
either counseling or rehabilitation; and to discipline and/or discharge 
employees who violate the policy. 
C.  The Township incorporates herein Section 34 (Drug Free Workplace 
Policy).  


II. OBJECTIVES: 


A.  Assure that the workplace is free from the effects of drug and/or alcohol use and 
that employees are fit to perform their work duties and report for work regularly 
and on time. 


B.  Comply with applicable state and federal law. 


III. SUBSTANCES INCLUDED IN THE TESTING POLICY: 


A. The minimum testing program will include the following substances present in the 
body: alcohol, cocaine, phencyclidine (PCP), marijuana, opiates of any type, and 
amphetamines.  The type and quantity of substances included in the testing 
program may be expanded or changed at any time as required by law or DOT 
regulation. 


IV. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REGULATIONS CONCERNING TESTING OF 
CDL DRIVERS: 


The Department of Transportation (DOT) has established mandatory drug 
and alcohol testing regulations that affect certain municipal drivers and driver 
applicants.  Ferguson Township is committed to comply with these 
regulations.  Accordingly, the following will apply to all employees required to 
have a CDL license and applicants for such positions. 


Deleted: As such, Ferguson Township will make every 
reasonable attempt to establish a work environment that is 
free from the adverse effects of drug and alcohol abuse, both 
directly and indirectly.


Deleted: ¶
B.


Deleted: C. This policy and parts or sections thereof, shall 
not apply to employees with CDL rated drivers licenses who 
are not required to have a CDL license to operate a municipal 
vehicle in the course of their employment with Ferguson 
Township.¶


Deleted: <#>Establish effective means to detect and deal 
with drug and alcohol abuse while respecting the rights of the 
workers.  The rights of workers include the right to privacy as 
defined by applicable law, to fair and equal treatment, and to 
those rights which may govern their employment.¶


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"


Deleted: designation 







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-2 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


1. Employee Responsibilities/Prohibited Conduct 


A.  The following shall be considered “prohibited conduct” for purposes of this                                        
policy: 


No CDL driver shall report for duty or remain on duty while having an alcohol 
concentration of .04 or greater. 


No CDL driver shall be on duty or operate a commercial motor vehicle while 
the driver possesses alcohol. 


No CDL driver shall use alcohol while performing safety-sensitive functions. 


No CDL driver shall perform safety-sensitive functions within four (4) hours 
after using alcohol. 


No CDL driver required to take a post-accident alcohol test shall use alcohol 
for eight (8) hours following the accident or until he or she undergoes a post-
accident alcohol test, whichever occurs first. 


No CDL driver shall refuse to submit to a post-accident, random, reasonable 
suspicion, return-to-duty, or follow-up alcohol or drug test. 


No CDL driver shall report for duty or remain on duty when the driver uses 
any controlled substance except when use is pursuant to the instructions of a 
physician who has advised the driver that the substance does not adversely 
affect the driver’s ability to operate a commercial motor vehicle. 


B.  If a driver engages in “prohibited conduct”, the driver is not qualified to drive a 
commercial motor vehicle and shall be immediately removed from service as time 
off without pay and referred to the Substance Abuse Professional.  Ferguson 
Township may also take disciplinary action against the driver up to and including 
termination. 


C.  No Supervisor having actual knowledge that a CDL driver has violated any provision 
of Part A above shall permit the CDL driver to work. Supervisors must immediately 
report any violations of Part A above to the Township Manager. 


2.  Types of Testing 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering


Deleted: <#>No driver shall be under the influence of alcohol, 
or have any measured alcohol concentration or detected 
presence of alcohol while performing safety sensitive 
functions.¶







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-3 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


A. Pre-Employment 


i. All applicants for CDL driver positions must submit to a pre-
employment drug and alcohol test. An applicant for a CDL position who tests  
positive for the presence of drugs or alcohol, as regulated by this policy and 
FMCSA regulations, will not be considered for employment with Ferguson 
Township. 


ii. Applicants for CDL driver positions shall consent and authorize 
Ferguson Township to obtain information from their prior employers for the 
prior three years, as set forth in FMCSA regulations.   


iii. An applicant for a CDL driver position will not be considered for 
employment if Ferguson Township is notified that the applicant has tested 
positive for either alcohol or a controlled substance, or has refused to be 
tested, within the preceding three years, or refuses to consent to authorize 
Ferguson Township to obtain the information. 


B.  Random Testing 


i. Each year, Ferguson Township will use a random process to select at 
least 50% of its CDL drivers, who will be tested for the use of controlled 
substances.  Additionally, each year 25% of its CDL drivers will be randomly 
tested for alcohol use.  Drivers selected on a random basis for testing will be 
required to supply a urine sample for controlled substance testing and submit 
to a legally accepted test for alcohol. Random testing is performed pursuant 
to FMCSA regulations.  


   C. Reasonable Suspicion testing 


i. Reasonable suspicion testing is performed when supervisors have 
reasonable cause to suspect an employee of drug or alcohol use.  The 
conduct necessitating testing, if at all feasible, shall have been witnessed by 
at least two supervisors.  However, if only one supervisor is available, only 
that supervisor need witness the conduct.  Each Supervisor will receive 
training in the detection of probable drug and alcohol use by observing a 
driver’s behavior. Specific reasons for reasonable suspicion testing include 
physical evidence of illicit substances, patterns of erratic or abnormal 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"


Deleted: duty


Commented [JA2]: FMSCA regulations only provide for a 
pre-employment test. There is no “pre-duty” test. If an 
employee shows up to work appearing to be under the 
influence, he/she should be sent for a reasonable suspicion 
test.  


Deleted: , including presence of drugs prior to commencing 
employment, or performing safety sensitive functions if the 
person is already employed with Ferguson Township.  


Deleted: testing


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Deleted:  
Deleted: the applicant’s employers, during the previous two 
years of employment, pertaining to the drivers alcohol tests 
showing concentration results of 0.04 or greater, positive 
controlled substances test results, and refusals to be tested, 
within the preceding two (2) years, which are maintained by 
the driver’s previous employers.


Deleted: shall be 


Deleted: in either alcohol concentration or controlled 
substances tests


Formatted: Not Highlight
Deleted: wo


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Deleted:  as identified in III.  SUBSTANCES INCLUDED IN 
THE TESTING POLICY, of this policy, as amended, or as 
required by law


Formatted: Font: 12 pt


Deleted: at least 


Deleted:  in the first year of this policy, and annually 
thereafter


Deleted: Testing will be required by a Supervisor upon 
determination of reasonable suspicion of a driver.







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-4 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


behavior, disorientation or confusion, and an inability to complete routine 
tasks. 


   D. Mandatory Post-Accident Testing 


i. CDL drivers will provide urine specimens for drug testing as soon as 
possible after a commercial vehicle accident, but no later than thirty-two (32) 
hours after the accident. 


ii. Drivers must be tested for alcohol as soon as possible after a 
commercial vehicle accident, but no later than eight (8) hours after the 
accident.  A driver shall not consume alcohol until he has been tested, or after 
the eight (8) hour period. 


iii. An accident is defined as involving the following with a commercial 
motor vehicle: 


 1) A vehicle related fatality is involved; or 


2) The driver receives a citation under state or local law for a 
moving violation, and: 


a) Bodily injury that requires a person to be transported 
away from the scene for medical treatments, or 


b) Damage to any vehicle that requires the vehicle to be towed 
away from the scene by a tow truck or another vehicle. 


iv. If, as a consequence of an accident, a driver is seriously injured and 
cannot provide a specimen at the time of the accident, he/she must provide 
the necessary authorization for obtaining hospital records and other 
documents that will indicate whether there were any controlled substances or 
alcohol in his/her system at the time of the accident. 


   E. Return To Duty Testing 


i. If Ferguson Township in its discretion, offers a CDL-driver re-
employment after the driver has been referred to an alcohol and substance 
abuse professional and the CDL-driver has undergone all recommended 


Deleted: D







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-5 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


treatment, the driver must successfully complete a test for alcohol and/or 
drugs prior to being returned to duty.  The driver will pay for all costs related 
to the Return of Duty Testing. 


   F. Follow-Up Testing 


i. Any CDL-driver who has returned to duty after a positive alcohol or 
drug test will be subject to unannounced follow-up tests for a period not to 
exceed sixty (60) months.  There will be at least 6 follow-up tests given during 
the first 12 months.  The driver will pay for all costs related to the Follow-up 
Testing. 


   G. Refusal To Test 


i. Refusal to submit to the types of drug and alcohol tests employed by 
Ferguson Township will be grounds for refusal to hire CDL- driver applicants 
and to terminate employment of existing drivers.  A refusal to test is defined to 
be conduct that would obstruct the proper administration of a test.  Refusing 
to sign step 2 of the alcohol form is considered a refusal to test.  A delay in 
providing a urine, breath, or saliva specimen could be considered a refusal.  If 
a driver cannot provide a sufficient quantity of urine or breath, he/she will be 
evaluated by a physician of the Township’s choice.  If the physician cannot 
find a legitimate medical explanation for the inability to provide a specimen 
(either breath or urine), it will be considered a refusal to test.  In that 
circumstance the CDL-driver has violated one of the prohibitions of the 
regulations. 


  3. Test Procedures 


   A. Drug Urinalysis 


i. Drug testing will be performed through urinalysis.  Urinalysis will test 
for the presence of drugs and/or metabolites of the controlled substances 
outlined in this policy. 


ii. The urinalysis procedure starts with the collection of a urine specimen.  
Urine specimens will be submitted to a Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA) - certified laboratory for testing.  As part 
of the collection process, the specimen provided will be split into two vials:  a 


Deleted: /


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-6 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


primary vial and a secondary vial.  The SAMHSA - certified laboratory will 
perform initial screenings on all primary vials.  In the event that the primary 
specimen tests positive, a confirmation test of that specimen will be 
performed before being reported by the laboratory to the MRO as a positive. 


iii. All laboratory results will be reported by the laboratory to a Medical 
Review Officer (MRO) designated by Ferguson Township.  Negative test 
results shall be reported by the MRO to Ferguson Township.  Before reporting 
a positive test result to Ferguson Township, the MRO will attempt to contact 
the driver to discuss the test result.  If the MRO is unable to contact the driver 
directly, the MRO will contact the program coordinator designated in advance 
by Ferguson Township, who shall, in turn, contact the driver and direct the 
driver to contact the MRO.  Upon being so directed, the driver shall contact 
the MRO immediately or, if after the MRO’s business hours and the MRO is 
unavailable, at the start of the MRO’s next business day.  In the MRO’s sole 
discretion, a determination will be made as to whether a result is positive or 
negative.  If, after failing to contact the MRO after 5 days, or if the driver 
cannot be contacted at all within 30 days, the MRO may verify the test as 
positive.  After any positive verification the driver may petition the MRO to 
reopen the case for reconsideration. 


iv. Pursuant to DOT regulation, individual test result for driver/applicants 
and drivers will be released to Ferguson Township and will be kept strictly 
confidential unless consent for the release of the test results has been 
obtained or if disclosure is authorized or required by law.  Any individual who 
has submitted to drug testing in compliance with this policy is entitled to 
receive the results of such testing upon timely written request. 


v. An individual testing positive may make a request of the MRO to have 
the secondary vial tested.  The secondary vial must be tested by a different 
SAMHSA - certified lab then tested the primary specimen.  The individual 
making the request for a test of the second specimen must pre-pay all costs 
associated with the test.  The request for testing of a secondary specimen is 
timely if it is made to the MRO within 72 hours of the individual being notified 
by the MRO of a positive test result. 


   B. Alcohol Test 







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-7 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


i. Ferguson Township will perform alcohol testing using a device that is 
on the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration’s (NHTSA) Conforming 
Products List (CPL) and meets the DOT’s testing requirements.  This may be 
a breath testing device or a saliva-based testing device, and may be provided 
through a vendor or agent.  The device will be operated by a technician who 
is certified and trained on the specific device he or she will be operating.  The 
driver shall report to the alcohol testing site as notified by Ferguson 
Township.  The driver shall follow all instructions given by the alcohol 
technician. 


 


ii. Any initial test indicating an alcohol concentration of .02 or greater will 
be confirmed on an evidential breath testing device (EBT) operated by a 
breath alcohol technician (BAT).  The confirmation test will be performed no 
sooner than 15 minutes and no later than 30 minutes following the completion 
of the initial test.  In the event the confirmation test indicates an alcohol 
concentration of .02 to .0399, the driver shall be removed from duty for 24 
hours without pay.  CDL-drivers with tests indicating an alcohol concentration 
of .04 or greater are considered to have engaged in “prohibited conduct”.  All 
alcohol tests shall be performed just prior to, during, or just after duty. 


V.  EDUCATIONAL TRAINING/ASSISTANCE: 


  1. For All Drivers 


A. Ferguson Township will establish a training program and provide 
educational materials which will address alcohol and controlled substances, 
and will review the requirements of this policy and the DOT regulations.  Each 
CDL-driver will sign a statement certifying he/she has received the materials 
required by the DOT regulations. 


2. For Supervisory Personnel:  


A. Supervisory personnel who determine whether or not reasonable 
suspicion exists will complete at least 60 minutes of training on recognizing 
alcohol misuse, and 60 minutes of training on recognizing controlled 
substances use.  The training shall cover the physical, behavioral, speech, 


Deleted: Drivers 


Commented [JA3]: Is this material provided? 


Commented [JA4]: Is this training provided? 







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-8 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


and performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse and use of controlled 
substances. 


  3. Employee Assistance Program: 


A. Ferguson Township has in place an Employee Assistance Program 
that includes assistance to those employees with drug and/or alcohol 
problems.  To access the program, which is provided through Center for 
Mental Health, located at 3939 South Atherton Street, drivers may call (814) 
867-0670.  


B. At any time a CDL-driver has a question regarding this policy and/or 
the DOT regulations, he/she is encouraged to contact the program 
coordinator designated by the Township. 


 


VI.  TEST RESULT PROCEDURES:  


 1. Notification of Test Results: 


A. Ferguson Township shall notify its drivers and driver applicants of the 
results of tests conducted pursuant to the DOT regulations.  Drivers who test 
positive will be advised specifically as to what drug or what amount of alcohol 
that was discovered. 


  2. Record Keeping: 


A. All of the records relating to the administration and results of 
municipality’s alcohol and drug testing program for its drivers will be 
maintained in accordance with DOT regulations. 


B. There shall be a Medical Review Officer who is a licensed doctor of 
medicine or osteopathy with knowledge of drug abuse disorders.  Ferguson 
Township shall establish a contract with the MRO to review alcohol and drug 
testing results in accordance with DOT regulations.  The Medical Review 
Officer shall be the sole custodian of individual test results.  The Medical 
Review Officer shall retain the reports of individual test results in accordance 
with DOT regulations. 







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-9 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


C. Ferguson Township shall maintain an annual (calendar) year summary 
of the records related to the administration and results of the testing program 
for its drivers under the DOT regulations. 


VII.  RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: 


1. Ferguson Township reserves the right to add to, change, or modify this 
policy at its sole discretion, and to terminate any employee at any time, 
except as those rights are restricted by law.  Ferguson Township accepts no 
liability in the event of an alleged breach of any of the policies or procedures 
set forth in this policy.   


2. Nothing in this policy shall be construed to limit the authority of the 
Municipality to impose discipline, including discharge, as it shall determine, so 
long as the minimums set forth in this policy are satisfied. 


VIII. LIMITATIONS OF SEVERABILITY: 


1. Each section, paragraph, part, term and/or provision of this Policy shall 
be considered severable.  If for any reason, any section, paragraph, part, 
term, and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in 
conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation, such shall not affect the 
remaining portion, sections, paragraphs, parts, terms and/or provisions of this 
policy. 


IX.  THIS IS NOT A CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENT: 


1. This policy and this document (or any accompanying document 
executed or delivered pursuant to or in connection with the policy) are not 
intended to confer any contractual or other rights or claims in favor of a 
Ferguson Township employee. 


X.  DEFINITIONS: 


1. The following definitions are for some terms used in this policy.  Other 
terms are as defined elsewhere within this policy or as defined within State 
and/or Federal Law. 


Deleted: Ferguson Township encourages every employee 
and prospective employee to comply voluntarily with this policy 
policy not only for his or her own safety, but for the safety of 
others.  Because of its importance, Ferguson Township will 
take all necessary steps to ensure implementation of 
compliance with this policy.  







 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 
Employees Affected: 


Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 
Date of Revision: 


 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-10 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


A. Alcohol Concentration - the alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in 
terms of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an evidential 
breath test required by law. 


B. Driver - an employee or applicant for employment who is required to 
have a Commercial Drivers License (CDL) to perform the duties of the job. 


C. Safety Sensitive Function - any of the following: 


i. waiting at the Township facility 


ii. performing pre-trip inspections or servicing the commercial motor 
vehicle 


iii. driving the commercial motor vehicle 


iv. being on or in the commercial motor vehicle 


v. loading or unloading, supervising the loading or unloading, giving 
receipts for the load, or remaining in readiness to operate a commercial 
motor vehicle 


vi. performing duties and services at an accident scene 


vii. repairing, getting help, or staying with a disabled vehicle 








This will be State College’s 1st Annual Cranksgiving Event! Cranksgiving is a food drive on 2 wheels. 
Bicyclists will gather at Youth Service Bureau at 325 West Aaron Drive on November 9th, from 9am 
to 2pm..  Participants are to visit 4 target zones (red circles on map) , and collect non-perishable food 
items to donate to YSB.  
 
There is no preset-predetermined routes, cyclists will come up with their own route. We are not 
requiring any police services; No road closures, or help at intersections needed. Food will be provided 
by a licensed vendor afterwards. We will not be using parks, or pavilions. We are estimating 30-75, 
but the number is unknown for our first year. This will be a yearly event so we’d like to establish a 
relationship so following years will be a simple. 


 
Hi-Res version :   http://cranksgivingstatecollege.com/public/max-crank.jpg 
 
Current Status 
Certificate of Insurance - Requested - CentreBike. ETA 9/19/19 
Health Department - Cleared - 9/13 Brian O’Donnell 
Harris Township - Cleared - No Permit Required - Just Notify Police 
College Township - Pending - Don Franson; Waiting for it in writing 
Patton Township - Cleared - 9/13 Ken Soder 
Patton Township Police - Cleared - 9/13 Tyler Jolley 
Ferguson Township Police - Pending - Chris Albright 
Ferguson Township - Can’t submit till Police 
Boro - Submitted 
State College Police - Spoke With - 9/16 - Kevin Winkelblech 
Penn State Police - Notified. Pending 







 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL EVENTS 


PERMIT 


 


Use of this Form: 


Complete this application if the proposed assemblage, procession, or other special 
event will require the closure of Township roads, sidewalks, and/or bikeways. Each 
application must be completed by an authorized agent of the sponsoring organization. 
Please complete this form in its entirety and submit it to Ferguson Township staff in 
accordance with the conditions enumerated in this application. For your convenience, 
this application also includes instructions and timelines for securing Pennsylvania 
Department of Transportation (PennDOT) and Centre Region Parks and Recreation 
(CRPR) Department approval should the event require closure of state roads and/or use 
of municipal/regional parks. Nothing in this application or associated policy shall 
supersede or override PennDOT or CRPR permit requirements.  


Timeline: 


Step Timeline 


Notify Ferguson Township Police 
Department of the intent to host an event 
and provide a general description of the 
event 


10 – 12 weeks prior to the event if the 
event will require a Ferguson Township 
Special Events Permit OR 3 weeks prior IF 
no closures are required 


Preliminary event planning with the Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation Department, 
if necessary 


At least 45 days prior to the event* 


If food will be served, notify the 
Department of Health and Neighborhood 
Services at the Borough of State College 


10 – 12 weeks prior to hosting an event 


Complete Ferguson Township Special 
Events Application 


10 – 12 weeks prior to hosting an event* 


Remit application permit fee and escrow 
payments to township 


Due when application is submitted 


Submit Certificate of Insurance, proposed 
map of procession, a copy of the 
“Registration for a Food Event on Public 
Property Form” signed by the Dept. of 
Health and Neighborhood Services, and a 
completed application checklist 


6 – 8 weeks prior to hosting an event 







If denied a permit and applicant wishes to 
appeal, notify Township Manager in writing 
of intent to do so 


Within 7 days of receiving a denial 


*Note: Plan to apply for a permit from CRPR at least 10 – 12 weeks prior to events that 
will also require a Ferguson Township Special Events Permit 


Definitions: 


Assemblage – An organized group of people without vehicles, or with vehicles that are 
stationary, which encroaches onto a street or highway and interferes with the movement 
of pedestrian or vehicular traffic.  The term includes, but is not limited to, street fairs, 
block parties, organized demonstrations, and other recreational activities. An 
assemblage is a special event. 


Authorized Agent – An individual or legal entity that has obtained authorization to act 
on behalf of the organization responsible for conducting the assemblage, procession, or 
special event for the purposes of completing all required parts of this application. 


Procession – An organized group of individuals, or individuals with vehicles, animals, 
or objects, moving along a roadway, or the berm or shoulder of a roadway in a manner 
that interferes with the normal movement of traffic.  The term includes, but is not limited 
to walks, foot races, parades, and marches. A procession shall not include a funeral 
caravan, military convoy or emergency service convoy. Other processions shall be 
considered a special event. 


Special Event – A procession, assemblage, or special activity held within the right-of-
way of a public right-of-way. 


State Road – A highway or bridge on the system of highways and bridges over which 
the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation has assumed or has been legislatively 
given jurisdiction. 


Any change in this application, regardless of progress in the approval process, must be 
resubmitted and routed through the same channels as if it were a new application. 


Applicant Information:  


Name of Applicant/Authorized Agent: __________________  Date: __________                                                                                                                  


Address of Sponsor or Organization:       Phone:     


          Cell:    


Email Address:          Fax:    __________ 


Primary Contact:          Phone:  _________ 



ven

Cranksgiving	�



ven

9/13/2019
�



ven

814 367 3265



ven

123 Hickory Road, State College, PA 16801



ven

mcox16801@comcast.net



ven

Matthew Cox



ven

814 367-3265







Secondary Contact:        Phone:  _________ 


Date and time of Activity:                From:      To:      


Rain Date (if applicable):      From:      To:      


Activity Detail: 


Describe your event in detail using additional sheets, if necessary: 


             
             
              


Will this event be held solely on sidewalks   ☐  No   ☐  Yes 
and/or bikeways? 
 
Does your event require a street closure? 
(Please consult Ferguson Township Police Dept. 
to help determine.)      ☐  No   ☐  Yes 
 
If yes, select the type of road that will be closed: (For more information, see attached 
map and list) 


☐ State Road(s) Only (Additional Form Required: PennDOT TE-300 Form) 


☐ Local Road(s) Only 


☐ State Road(s) and Local Road(s) (Additional Form Required: PennDOT TE-300 
Form) 


Listed in order of route, what street(s) would you like closed for this event? (Use 
additional sheets, if necessary) 


             
             
              


How long will the street closure be in effect?            From:           To:     


Will the event cross any municipal or state roads? ☐  Yes  ☐  No 


 


 



ven





ven





ven

Christine Bishop



ven

814 237-5731



ven

11/9/2019



ven

9:00am



ven

2:00pm



ven

Food Drive on 2 wheels . See attached for details. 







If yes, please indicate which roads the procession will cross: 


______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 


Will the event procession cross any state roads? ☐  Yes  ☐  No 
(If yes, submit PennDOT TE-300 Form) 
 
Municipal/Regional Park Usage: 


If this event includes the use of a municipal/regional park, please contact the Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation (CRPR) Department by phone at (814) 231-3071 or by 
email at crpr@crcog.net prior submitting this form (see attached timeline).  Special park 
permits and conditions may also apply.  Once the approval is secured from the Centre 
Region Parks and Recreation Department, please have an authorized official complete 
the fields below. 


Name: (Print)         Title of Official:      


Signature:           Date of Approval:      


Charitable Cause: 


Is the Sponsor an organization with 501(c)(3) tax exempt status? ☐ Yes  ☐ No 


If this event is to benefit a charitable organization, please identify that organization: 


              


Health Considerations: 


Will there be food and drink provided to the public at this event? ☐  Yes ☐  No 


If yes, have you made arrangements for approval/inspections  ☐  Yes ☐  No 
with the Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public  
Health?  
    
If no, please complete the form that is attached to this application and obtain approval 
prior to submission of this application. 


 


 


 



mailto:crpr@crcog.net

ven





ven

Youth Service Bureau - 325 W Aaron Drive



ven





ven









 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Timeline and Checklist: 


 


 


 


 


The Applicant recognizes and AGREES that Ferguson Township requires the 
proposed event to be conducted in such a manner that minimizes disruption to 
township residents and be within the limits established by existing ordinances.  By 
signing below, the Applicant AGREES to protect, defend, indemnify and hold 
Ferguson Township and its officers, employees and agents free and harmless from 
and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, settlements, costs or other 
expenses or liabilities of every kind and character arising directly or indirectly from 
this event.  The Applicant further AGREES to investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, etc., at the Applicant’s sole expense and 
AGREES to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, even if such claims 
are groundless, false or fraudulent. 


Signature:              Date:       


OFFICE USE ONLY: ROUTING FOR APPROVAL 


     Police Dept. _____     _____ Public Works Dept.      _____      _____ 


     Health Dept. _____     _____      Township Manager       _____      _____ 


THIS SERVES AS YOUR PERMIT 


The Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors approved your application on: 


___________________________________________________________________ 


Conditions (if any) are as follows:  ________________________________________ 


___________________________________________________________________ 


Signature of Chairperson or  
authorized representative:      ________________________________________ 



ven

Matthew Cox



ven

9/13/2019







Checklist: 


☐ Notify the Ferguson Township Police Department of your intent to host a 
special event regardless of whether or not the event will require the use of 
Township roads, bikeways, or sidewalks. 


☐ Contact the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Department (CRPR) at 
814-231-3071 if the event will include the use of a municipal/regional park. 


☐ If food will be served on public property, contact the Department of Health 
and Neighborhood Services at the Borough of State College by phone at 
814-234-7191 or by email at healthdept@statecollegepa.us. 


☐ Complete the Ferguson Township Special Events Application. 
☐ Pay required application and escrow fees. 
☐ Submit Certificate of Insurance and any other necessary documents. 
☐ If denied a permit at any point in the process and you wish to appeal the 


decision, notify the Township Manager in writing of your request to do so. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



ven





ven





ven





ven









Checklist for Hosting a Special Event on State Roads: 


☐ Complete PennDOT’s TE-300: Special Event Permit Application. 
 (must be done after approval is secured from Ferguson Township) 
 
☐ Review PennDOT Title 67, Chapter 212.701 Subchapter H, Special Events. 


☐ Event Insurance Certificate 
(must meet Ferguson Township requirements above, and list the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania as an additional insured) 


 
☐ Notify Pennsylvania State Police (PSP) of special event 
 (please contact Station Commander at Local PSP Barracks). 
 
☐ PennDOT requirements for notification and/or approval letter(s) for special 


events.  If the Special Event occurs on: 


 ☐ State Road(s) Only 


☐ Sponsor is required to send notification letter(s) to each 
municipality for special event involvement on state road. 


☐ Sponsor is required to submit a copy of the municipality notification 
letter(s) to the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation along 
with the TE-300: Special Events Permit Application. 


 ☐ State Road(s) and Local Road(s) 


☐ Sponsor is required to send notification letter to each municipality 
for special event involvement on state road. 


☐ Sponsor is required to obtain approval letter from each municipality 
for special event involvement on a local road. 


☐ Sponsor is required to submit a copy of each municipality 
notification and approval letter to the Pennsylvania Department of 
Transportation along with the TE-300: Special Events Permit 
Application 


☐ Submit completed and signed permit application and the required documents to 
the appropriate Pennsylvania Department of Transportation District Engineering Office 
eight (8) weeks prior to the date of the special event. 



ftp://ftp.dot.state.pa.us/public/PubsForms/Forms/TE-300.pdf

http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/067/chapter212/subchapHtoc.html

http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&objID=4541&level=1&css=L1&mode=2





Route Number Lookup Table


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
! !


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


! !
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
! !


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


T708


T995


T927


T991


T2
97


T974


T922


T664


T9
92


T300


T9
69


T830


T9
93


T931


T580
T925


T78
9


T992


T337


T926


TTW
P


T936


T 952


T79
4


T290


T970


T7
99


T941


T290


T29 6


T794


TTWP


T339


T289


T743


T709


T989


T794


T3
10


T705


T743
T743


T289


T 7
87


T794


T826


T955


T962


T85
2


T973


T664


T3
04


T928


T929


T9
78


T79
5


T997


T9 75


T336


T284


T929


T951


T96
9


T944


T273


T929


T692


T919


T78
2


T9
83


T576


T336


T995


T804


T947


T9
39


T963


T947


T779
T286


T950


T400


T342


T340


T946


T956


T278


T664


T596


T891


T278


T338*


T989


T786


T921


T9
27


T305


T98 1


T597


T331


T286


T33
9


T827


T274


T337


T798


T284


T940


T9


89


T797


T976


T888


T630


T270


T965


T990


T703


T596


T953


T337


T791


T938


T964


T970


T954


T2
85


T965


T808


T982


T329


T989


T975


T330


T888


T332


T98
9


T335


T2
89


T932


T783


T889


T289


T275


T7
81


T70
2


T702


T800


T940


T998


T966


T70


4


T279


T609


T798


T958


T306
T306


T957


T2
81


T 93


7T9
37


T988


T286


T648


T280


T667


T28
3


T207


T313


T941


T941


T307


T791


0.08


0.16
0.02


0.02


0.04


0.03


0.03


0.03


0.05


0.4


0.
04


0.
03


0.03


0.03


0.05


0.06


0.03


0.04


0.03


0.04


0.03


0.05


0.08


0.04


0.05


0.05


0.04


0.04


0.06


0.0
6


0.
05


0.05


0.05


0.05


0.03


0.02


0.05


0.05


0.0
5


0.06


0.06


0.0
5


0.05


0.05


0.05


0.06


0.05


0.05


0.0
5


0.0 7


0.05


0.05


0.06


0.06
0.06


0.0
5


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.0
6


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.06


0.0
6


0.07


0.08


0.06


0.07


0.06


0.09


0.07


0.0
7


0.06


0.06


0.0
6


0.
08


0.07


0.08


0.07


0.07


0.07


0.05


0.
06


0.07


0.06


0.07


0.0
6


0.08


0.
06


0.07


0.08


0.09


0.0 7


0 .0
8


0.
05


0.07


0.07


0.09


0.0
7


0.
05


0.07


0. 07


0.11


0.08


0.07


0.08


0.07


0.0
9


0.07


0.2
7


0.08


0.08


0. 08


0.
07


0.
08


0.08


0.09


0.14


0.09


0.06


0.2
7


0.0 8


0.08


0.12


0.08


0.0 9


0.09


0.08


0.0
9


0.0 9


0 .09


0.09


0.
09


0 .09


0.09


0.09


0.09


0.17


0.09


0.08


0.09


0.09


0.09


0.09


0.
1


0.09


0.09


0.1


0.1


0.14


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.22
0.22


0.08


0.1


0.1


0.09


0.1


0.1


0. 12


0.11


0.13


0.1 1


0. 1
1


0.1


0.1
0.1


0.1


0.11


0.12


0.11


0.11


0.11


0.11


0.11


0.1


0.11


0. 1
2


0.11


0.1
1


0.12


0.09


0.12


0.12


0.13


0.22


0.1
2 0.1


2


0.13


0.
14


0.13


0.13


0.13


0.13


0.13


0.
13


0.27


0.13


0.14


0.13


0.14


0.14


0.2


0.15


0.1


4


0.13


0.14
0.14


0.15


0.14
0.15


0.15


0.
14


0.15


0.15


0.15


0.14


0.15


0.14


0.15


0.15


0.15


0.16


0.16


0.17


0.16


0.16


0.16


0.16


0 .17


0.17


0.18


0.18


0.2


0.1
8


0.1
9


0.19


0.1
9


0.19


0.1
9


0.1
9


0.19


0.19


0.19


0.19


0.19


0.2
7


0.19


0.2


0.2


0.19


0.2


0.18


0.21


0.21


0.22


0.22


0.22


0.22


0.22


0.05


0.23


0.23


0.17


0.23


0.24


0.26


0.24


0.25


0.25


0.25 0.27


0.13


0.260.25


0.27


0.27


0.28


0.28


0.29


0.29


0.
17


0.23


0.31


0.32


0.
31


0.33


0.34


0.4


0.46


0.47


0.48


0.56


0.27


0.29


0.61


0.63


0.79


0.86


0.
89


0.92


0.94


0.
94


1.09


1.16


1.21


1.29
1.41


1.58


2.7
7


0.06


0.1
3


0.07


0.07


0.08


0.09


0 .1


0. 11


0.13


0.13


0.
14


0.1
1


0.14


0.14


0.15


0.16


0.160.16


0.1
7


0.16


0.1 6


0.16


0.16


0.16


0.16


0.17


0.17
0.17


0.22


0.19


0.2


0.21


0.2
2


0.21


0.22
0.22


0.23


0.28


0.25


0.26


0.26


0.2
5


0.25


0.
29


0.27


0.2
7


0.2
7


0.
28


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.
3


0.15


0.31


0.38


0.38


0.5


0.51


0.51


0.6


0.6


1.49


1.81


0.14


0.26


0.28
SPECIAL EVENT ROUTE PLANNING MAP
Labels show Route Numbers and Lengths (miles) of Township Road Segments
Highlighted Routes have Road and/or Sidewalk Closure Restrictions (refer to Legend)


0 1 2 3 40.5
Miles


0 1 2 3 40.5
Kilometers


TOWNSHIP OF


FERGUSON
3147 Research Drive ∙ State College, PA ∙ 16801
Phone: (814) 238‐4651 ∙ Fax: (814) 238‐3454


Legend
No Road or Sidewalk Closures by Event Permit


! ! ! ! Sidewalk Closures ONLY by Event Permit (no Road Closures)


Public Roads


!
!


! ! ! !
!


!!!


Ferguson Township Boundary


Dated:          05/10/2013


Map Scale at Full Size:
(24x36", ARCH D)


1:24,000
1 inch = 2,000 feet


Drawn by:     AED












RESOLUTION NO.__________ 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA, AUTHORIZING THE SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TO EXECUTE A REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 2018  GREEN LIGHT GO 
GRANT WITH THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 
UPGRADING AND INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT REQUIRED TO PROVIDE VEHICLE 
DETECTION UPGRADE AT EXISTING SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township of Ferguson (Township) applied for a 2018 Green Light-Go 
grant from the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation in January 2019 and received a 
notice of award in October 2019 to complete vehicle detection improvements to existing 
signalized intersections, and,  
 


WHEREAS, the Township will manage the design, construction, and construction 
inspection the project and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Reimbursement Agreement provides for a total grant amount of $80,000 
in funding with municipal funding of $20,000.  The total estimated cost of the project is 
$100,000. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Township's Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the 
Secretary of the Board of Supervisors to execute the Green Light Go Program 
Grant/Reimbursement Agreement with the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation using 
dotGrants and to execute all future documents related to this Grant. 
 


RESOLVED, this 21st day of October, 2019. 
 


 
      TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
       Steve Miller, Chairman 
       Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 


David G. Pribulka, Secretary 








RESOLUTION NO.    
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA, REPEALING RESOLUTION 2018-25 BY ADOPTING A REVISED 
SIDEWALK SNOW REMOVAL MAP. 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Township of Ferguson authorized the 
preparation annually of a revised Sidewalk Snow Removal Policy Map, hereinafter called 
"Map"; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Map identifies properties within the Township that will be exempt 
from the snow and ice removal requirements of Chapter 21, Section 207. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Supervisors hereby adopts 


the 2019-2020 Sidewalk Snow Removal Policy Map dated October 21, 2019 and attached 
hereto as Exhibit "A". 


 


RESOLVED, this 21st day of October 2019. 


 
 
            TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
             Steve Miller, Chairman 
             Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  [  S E A L  ] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 


David G. Pribulka, Secretary 







Exhibit “A” 
 


 
 
 








1420653


W COLLEGE AVE


CIRCLEVILLE RD


BLUE COURSE DR


W WHITEHALL R
D


E PINE GROVE RD
AUTUMNWOOD


DR


S NIXON RD


E CHESTNUT ST


SLEEPY HOLLOW DR
SCIENCE PARK RD


N NIXON RD


OLD GATESBURG RD


HARVE ST RI DG EDR


CORL CIR


KINGSC T


SELDERSCIR


TARACIR
CHELSEA


LN


DEERFIE LD DR


HAVERS HIRE BLV D


PAT T O N  T W P


PAT T O N  T W P


F E R G U S O N  T W P


F E R G U S O N  T W P


CO L L E G E  T W
P


C O L L E G E  T W
P


F E R G U S O N  T W
P


F E R G U S O N  T W
P


WESTERLY


PKWY


MARTIN ST


VALLEY VISTA DR


Legend
Sidewalks


Sidewalk Exempt
Areas
Parcels


Streets


Map Date: 10/16/2019
0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500


Feet


:
2019-2020 Sidewalk Snow Removal
Policy Map


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON


V:\GIS_Data\Sidewalks\SidewalkSnowRemovalPolicyMap_2019.mxd








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 


State College, PA 16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 ● Fax: (814) 231-3083 ● Website: www.crcog.net 


PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
COG General Forum Room 


 Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
12:15 PM


AGENDA 


1. CALL TO ORDER 


Chair Cathy Dauler will convene the meeting. 


2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda (five 
minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda 
should be deferred to that point in the meeting. 


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


A copy of the minutes from the August 13, 2019 meeting of the COG Public Safety 
Committee is enclosed. 


4. JOINT EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (BASIC PLAN) 


This agenda item asks the Public Safety Committee to review and provide comments on 
the enclosed update to the 2015 Centre Region Basic Emergency Management Plan. Upon 
completion of the Committee’s review, action should be considered to refer the Plan to the 
General Forum for approval. The proposed revisions are “housekeeping” in nature and are 
limited to a change in information sharing procedures and Emergency Operations Center 
activation levels. The Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency (PEMA) recommends 
that this emergency management plans be periodically reviewed and updated. Recently, the 
Centre Region Office of Emergency Management and Penn State Emergency Management 
have completed an update to the Joint Centre Region/Penn State Emergency Operations 
Plan (Basic Plan). This document, if approved by the General Forum, will replace the 
Centre Region Emergency Operations Plan (Basic Plan) from October 2015.


The Joint Centre Region/Penn State Emergency Operations Plan (Basic Plan) is the public 
portion of the Centre Region’s Emergency Operations Plan. The document outlines 
responsibilities for emergency prevention, protection, response, recovery, and mitigation 
within the Centre Region/University Park Campus. This updated document has been 







Public Safety Committee Agenda 
October 8, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 


reviewed by the Centre Region Emergency Management Council (EMC) and the Penn State 
Emergency Management staff.


To ensure that all the municipalities have a similar understanding of the Joint Centre 
Region/Penn State Emergency Operations Plan (Basic Plan), the Emergency Management 
Coordinator is recommending that it be adopted by a resolution of the General Forum. 


To proceed with the adoption of the enclosed Resolution 2019-4, the Public Safety 
Committee is asked to consider forwarding the following motion to the Executive 
Committee for referral to the General Forum:


5. STAFF UPDATES 


COG Staff will provide updates on the following topics: 


Code Administration (Walt Schneider) – The Code Director will report on the 
current items including following: 


The status and time schedule for COG Software Study  
The status and time schedule for the office space renovations for the 
relocation of the administrative division of the CRCA agency to space 
currently occupied by Centre Region Parks and Recreation. 
Budget updates – no change in the cost of a rental house permit fee or new 
construction permit is proposed for 2020. 


Fire Protection (Steve Bair) – The Fire Director will report on current activities.


Emergency Management Program (Shawn Kauffman) – The Emergency 
Management Coordinator will report on the following on current activities 
including the following:


The EM Coordinator will invite the Committee to a meeting scheduled for 
Tuesday, November 12, 2020 at 12:00 Noon in the forum room of the COG 
Building with the Public Services and Environmental Committee. During the 
joint meeting the two Committees will discuss emergency response issues  with 
representatives from the Fire, Police, PennDOT and utilities companies.







Public Safety Committee Agenda 
October 8, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 


6. OTHER BUSINESS  


A. Matter of Record – The next meeting of the Public Safety Committee meeting is 
scheduled for Tuesday, November 12, 2019 at the COG Building.  


B. Matter of Record – The August and September 2019 monthly comparison of code 
statistics and permits issued/permits closed reports are enclosed (permits 
issued/permits closed reports are distributed electronically only). 


C. Matter of Record – The July and August, 2019 monthly report on code statistics 
relating to the rental housing inspection program will be distributed at the meeting. 


D. Matter of Record – The proposal time line for the fire study is: 


August 29, 2019: Request for Proposals Initiated
October 8, 2019:  Proposals Due
November, 2019:  Contractor Interviews
December 30, 2019: Contract Award by the COG 
January 1, 2020:  Consultant Approved to Begin Work 
June 29, 2020: Consultant Makes Final Presentation to COG 
General  Forum 


E. Matter of Record – Enclosed is a copy of testimony that Steve Bair presented to a 
Pennsylvania Senate Committee. 


F. Matter of Record – The following data is provided by the National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA).  2017 is the most recent full year of data available 


7. ADJOURNMENT 








CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #3


State College, PA  16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3088 Website: www.crcog.net


COG Building – Forum Room
Thursday, October 10, 2019


8:30 AM


AGENDA


1. CALL TO ORDER


Chairman Graham will convene the meeting.


2. PUBLIC COMMENTS


Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minutes per person time limit please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred to that point in the meeting.


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES


Enclosed is a copy of the minutes from the September 12, 2019 meeting.


4. MEETING DATE


The Finance Committee should consider rescheduling its Thursday, November 14, 2019 to 
the following week, Tuesday, November 19, 2019 at 8:30 AM, to allow for additional time 
for municipal review of the 2020 Summary Budget.


5. 2020 DETAILED BUDGET WRAP-UP SESSION


During the last two weeks, the Finance Committee conducted three special meetings with 
COG Agency Directors and Administration staff to review the draft 2020 COG Budget. 
The Committee agreed to commit its regular October meeting to serve as a “wrap-up” of 
outstanding budget questions. After the Committee reaches agreement on any revisions 
that may need to be made, COG staff will use the resulting budget estimates to accomplish 
the following:


Prepare the “goldenrod” colored revision pages for the 2020 Detailed Budget. 


Prepare the 2020 Summary Budget that will be distributed to the General Forum 
with its agenda packet for the October 28, 2019 meeting.







Finance Committee Agenda
October 10, 2019
Page 2 of 5


Mr. Viglione will then review the notes from the budget review sessions and well as other 
changes that will have occurred during the budget review process (by way of example – the 
actual rates for employee health insurance will be available as will be the actual cost for 
conducting the fire study). 


As of October 2, 2019, the changes to the Detailed Budget that the Committee has 
approved are:


a) Parks Operating Budget: The start date for the new Parks Caretaker position would 
be delayed from about April 1, 2020 to about July 1, 2020.


b) Parks Capital Budget: Reduce municipal contributions by the $5,000 that had been 
designated for the purchase of a used vehicle.


c) Millbrook Marsh Nature Center Capital Budget: For grant application purposes, 
the municipalities pledge $75,000 for 2020 and 2021 and $50,000 for 2022 for the 
construction of the Phase II Spring Creek Education Building Project. These funds 
will not be transferred to the Budget until such time as the grant(s) are approved 
and the project is moving to construction. 


d) Regional Parks Capital: Remove the proposed $30,000 allocation for the irrigation 
system at Whitehall Road Regional Park.


The Finance Committee asked staff to prepare a comparison of how employee/employer 
health insurance costs are shared among the municipalities and the COG. At the meeting 
the HR Officer will present the information collected to date.


The Finance Committee voted down a request to decrease the building permit fee 
multiplier from .0055 to .005 by a 2-4 vote (Yeas – College Township, Patton Township; 
Nays – State College Borough, Harris Township, Ferguson Township, Halfmoon 
Township).


In addition, the Finance Committee has requested a future agenda item to discuss how 
various aspects of the Administration budget are funded.


The Finance Committee members should express issues or concerns that were missed in 
the meeting notes or the Finance Director’s comments. In addition, the Committee should 
identify remarks that it wants to share with the General Forum. Following this discussion,
the Committee should confirm the changes that are to be made to 2020 Detailed COG 
Budget.


Based on the Committee’s recommendations the following actions will occur:







Finance Committee Agenda
October 10, 2019
Page 3 of 5


Goldenrod Budget sheets will be prepared and distributed to each individual who
has received a copy of the Detailed Budget. These sheets will identify the changes 
endorsed by the Committee.


A 2020 Summary Budget will be prepared based on the Detailed Budget as 
endorsed by the Committee.


The 2020 Summary Budget will be forwarded to the General Forum with its 
agenda packet for the October 28, 2019 COG Forum meeting. 


The Committee Chair will prepare an introduction to the General Forum for the 
2020 Detailed Budget.


After the Finance Committee completes its review of the 2020 Detailed Budget, 
consideration should be given to approving the following motion and referring it to the 
Executive Committee: 


see agenda item #4


6. MONTHLY REPORTS


Copies of the September 2019 voucher report are enclosed with this agenda. To proceed, 
the Committee should consider the following motion:


Copies of the September 2019 COG financial reports (electronically, only) are also 
enclosed. If the Committee has any questions about the items in these reports, please let 
Finance Director Joe Viglione (jviglione@crcog.net or 231-3062) know as soon as possible
so that the information can be researched prior to the next Committee meeting.


7. OTHER BUSINESS


A. Matter of Record – COG Staff has been in touch with Mr. Chris Gibbons of 
Concord Public Financial Advisors, Inc. about the outstanding Pools and Regional 
Parks loans.  At this time, based on the available information, the most prudent 
course of action is to revisit the refinancing/renegotiating concept at a later date.  
Staff and Mr. Gibbons agreed that it was a good idea to continue monitoring the 


Please remember to bring your draft 2020 Detailed Budget to the meeting.







Finance Committee Agenda
October 10, 2019
Page 4 of 5


interest rate market and to talk again in February 2020 as more information 
becomes available.


B. Matter of Record – COG Staff is in the process of opening an investment on behalf 
of the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority to accept the donation of a 
stock gift.  Upon receipt of the donation, Staff will sell the stock and move the 
proceeds to the Parks bank account.


C. Matter of Record – Staff has reached an agreement with Marco Technologies to 
lease a copier for a period of 60 months.  The existing copier purchased from 
Nittany Office Equipment will be moved to the Parks offices on Sandy Drive.


D. Matter of Record - The following is an update of the status of planning and 
evaluation studies currently underway at the COG.


Planning Activity Status
1 Update 


Personnel Policy 
Handbook


This project is complete. 


2 Parks and 
Recreation 
Regional Plan


This project is well underway – The Steering Committee 
is reviewing the first drafts of the Plan. A public forum 
on the plan is scheduled November 14 at 7:00 PM in the 
SCASD High School. The Plan should be presented to 
the General Forum during its January 27, 2020 meeting.


3 Study of 
Regional Fire 
Protection 
Program


Bids for this project are due October 8. The draft 
Detailed Budget allocates $50,000 for this project.  


4 IT Study Due to staff limitations this project will not go forward 
in 2019 but will be carried into 2020. 


5 Code Software 
Study


The Working Group for this project has met four times 
and has identified four options that will be considered in 
more detail.


6 COG Facilities 
Evaluation


This project should continue to move forward during
2020. The draft Detailed Budget allocates $30,000 for 
this project.


7 Executive 
Director 
Recruitment and 
Screening 
Committee 


The Recruitment Committee expects to have a 
consultant selected to conduct the hiring process by the 
end of October.  







Finance Committee Agenda
October 10, 2019
Page 5 of 5


8 Solar Power 
Purchase 
Agreement 
Working Group


The Committee discussed the RFQ/RFI/RFP process, 
the allocation of costs associated with the process, and 
the desire to expand the Working Group beyond the 
Centre Region and inviting all municipal entities within 
Centre County to participate. The Detailed Budget 
allocates the COG share as $4,000 for this project.


8. ADJOURNMENT








 


  
 


Manager’s Report 
October 21, 2019 


 
1. A meeting of the selection committee for the Executive Director of the Centre Region 


Council of Governments was held on October 15th. The Committee is currently in the 
process of interviewing consultants to perform the executive search and recruitment. A 
successful consultant will be selected by the end of October, and it is anticipated that the 
entire recruitment and selection of the next Executive Director will take approximately 90 
days. As a reminder, I am the Ferguson Township representative on the selection 
committee. 
 


2. Attached to my report is a letter of appreciation from First Night State College for the 
Township’s sponsorship of one ice sculpture for this year’s event. 
 


3. The Ferguson Township Parks and Recreation Committee met on October 14th at 6:00 
p.m. Topics discussed included a review of residents’ concerns relative to the “no-mow” 
area in Cecil Irvin Park; a discussion of future meeting dates and times; and the 
replacement plan for a drinking fountain at Homestead Park.  
 


4. The Township received its renewal information for its health insurance plan for 2020. I am 
pleased to report that our rates have decreased by 5.8% from our 2019 premiums. This 
is reflective of good utilization of the plan and the value the Township received from its 
membership in the Pennsylvania Municipal Health Insurance Cooperative. The Township 
is a member of a self-insured municipal cooperative that has kept rates stable and below 
national average. 
 


5. A meeting of the Non-Uniformed Pension Advisory Committee was held on Tuesday, 
October 8th. At the meeting, the Committee voted unanimously to recommend approval 
of the draft investment policy statement for the plan. The investment policy statement will 
be in front of the Board of Supervisors for approval on November 4th. After that, the 
Committee will begin evaluating its fund lineup and recommending changes based on our 
consultant’s input and the investment policy statement’s objectives. 












 


 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive   State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651   Fax: 814-238-3454 


 


 
 


Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors 


for the regular meeting on October 21, 2019 


1. Staff continues work on the 2019 year end budget projections and the 2020 operating 
budget. 


2. Staff is working on a state aid multi-modal transportation grant and a county liquid fuel 
grant for a project in Pine Grove Mills. Staff met with stakeholders on 9/17/19 and discussed 
the scope of work for the project. 


3. Pollutant Reduction Plan (PRP): NTM Engineering completed an update to the MS4 
Pollutant Reduction Plan. The updated report was reviewed by staff. An advertisement will be 
placed in the CDT announcing a 30-day public comment period and a public meeting on 
October 30th at 6pm to be held at the College Township municipal building. After the public 
comment period, the revised plan will be submitted to PaDEP for review and approval. 


4. Renovations to Township Administration Building: All contracts are executed, bonds are in 
place, a notice to proceed was issued. The first job progress meeting is scheduled for October 
17th. 


5. Proposed Public Works Maintenance Facility– Bids were opened on October 1, 2019.The 
total of the low bids for each of the 4 trades (General, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical) 
exceeds the budget of 4.5 million dollars. Staff is evaluating options and will bring the matter to 
the Board of Supervisors at a future meeting. 


6. Stormwater Fee Study Phase 2 –The seventh, and final, meeting of the Stormwater Advisory 
Committee for phase 2 of the study is scheduled for October 23rd. The committee will review 
final elements of funding, level of service, and proposed fee structure. A final report will be 
prepared by the consultant and presented to the Board of Supervisors at a future meeting. 
Public outreach and education will continue. 


7. Arborist and Ferguson Township Tree Commission – The next FTTC meeting is October 
21st. This is an advertised public hearing on tree removals. The FTTC continues work on a 
draft tree preservation ordinance, outreach/education, and plan reviews. 


8. Maintenance Section: Activities the 2 week period starting October 21st include inlet repairs, 
daily leaf collection, and berm grading on Whitehall Road and Dry Hollow Road. 


9. Engineering Section: Engineering staff started survey and design work for planned 2020 
capital road projects. 







 


 


 


10. Contract 2018-C20 Park Hills Drainageway Design: This project is currently in design. Our 
consultant, NTM, is currently revising the grading for the proposed drainageway based upon 
the supplement recently authorized by the BOS. After staff reviews the grading plan, a second 
public meeting will be scheduled with residents that adjoin the project. On behalf of the 
Township, NTM will submit an application for a 2019 National Fish and Wildlife Foundation 
Local Government Implementation Grant for the final design and preparation of a FEMA 
conditional letter of map revision. 


11. Contract 2019-C5 Pipe video assessment: Work is in progress. 


12. Contract 2019-C20 Science Park Road and Sandy Drive (north) Traffic Signal Design and 
Permitting: A request for proposals for professional services was sent to engineering firms 
and proposals are due October 15th. 


13. Rushcliffe Street Study: Based on resident concerns, the Board of Supervisors at a regular 
meeting this summer requested staff to conduct a study to determine if Rushcliffe Street met 
criteria to be posted one-way. Data collection and the study should be completed shortly and 
results of the study and a staff recommendation available for the Board to consider at the first 
regular meeting in November. 








 
 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 


Monday, October 21, 2019 


 


PLANNING COMMISSION 


The Ferguson Township Planning Commission met on October 14, 2019. They reviewed the following: 


• Harpster Subdivision and Replot (2873 Tadpole Road | 24-006-,004B-,0000) 


• West Cherry Lane Multi Use Building (114 W. Cherry Lane | 24-015-,038-,0000) 


• Zoning and SALDO Ordinance Final Draft 


o A recommendation was made by the Planning Commission to the Board to adopt both 


ordinances based on Planning and Zoning Staff’s edits. 


LAND DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND OTHER PROJECTS 


1. Active Plans are listed below for the Board of Supervisors (10/15/19). 


o West Cherry Lane Multi Use Building (114 W. Cherry Lane | 24-015-,038-,0000) 


o Harpster Subdivision and Replot (2873 Tadpole Road | 24-006-,004B-,0000) 


o Watkins Subdivision (550 Bloomsdorf Drive | 24-017-,012-,0000) 


o Whitehall Road Regional Park (intersection of Blue Course Drive and Whitehall Road) 


o Orchard View Subdivision Plan (24-4-67 and replot 24-4-67C) 


o Harner Farm Subdivision Plan (24-4-67 and replot 24-4-67C) 


o Whitehall Road Sheetz (24-4-67 and replot 24-4-67C) 


2. The Township’s Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance is scheduled 


for adoption during the Board of Supervisor’s November 4, 2019 public hearing. 


3. Planning Staff attended the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Meeting on October 15, 2019. 


Implementation priorities, mapping, upcoming meeting schedules, milestones and finalizing the 


Small Area Plan were topics of discussion. 


4. Planning and Zoning Staff met with the Planning Commission Chair to discuss meeting organization 


for future meetings. 


UPCOMING ZONING HEARING BOARD AGENDA 


1. The Zoning Hearing Board will be reviewing a variance request for a property along Meckley Road 


(Tax Parcel 24-007-024E-000) for the October 22, 2019 meeting. The applicant is requesting a 


variance to reduce setbacks for the property. The property is located in the R-1 Zoning District. 








 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting 


Monday, October 7, 2019 
7:00 PM 


 
I. ATTENDANCE 


The Board of Supervisors held its first regular meeting of the month on Monday, 
October 7, 2019, at the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  In attendance were: 
 
Board: Steve Miller 


Richard Killian 
Laura Dininni 
Lisa Strickland 
Ford Stryker 
 


Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Centrice Martin, Assistant to the Manager 
Dave Modricker, Public Works Director 
Jenna Wargo, Director of Planning & Zoning 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police 
 


Others in attendance included:  Faith Norris, Recording Secretary; John Spychalski, CATA; Vern 
Squier, CBICC; John Sepp; David Stone, NVEC; Jennifer Myers, CBICC; Jeremie Thompson. 
 


II. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Miller called the Monday, October 7, 2019, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that executive sessions were held on September 24th and 25th on litigation matters. 
 


III. CITIZENS INPUT  


Mr. Stone spoke on behalf of the Nittany Valley Environmental Coalition regarding litigation matters 
pertaining to the Pine Hall Master Plan.  Details followed on related concerns and the ordinance. 
 


IV. SPECIAL REPORTS   


a. Center Area Transportation Authority 
Mr. Spychalski reported that full service went into effect on August 24th and is going relatively 
smoothly.  The frequency of service impact to Ferguson Township for the K Route was discussed 
for the one-year pilot program.  Ridership is up compared to last year.  Upcoming meetings were 
announced:  Annual Community Input Meeting will be held Wednesday, October 30th at Schlow 
Library for CATA Bus Community Service; CATA Ride Service route meeting will be held on 
Monday, November 4th at 5:00 p.m. at State College Borough Building.  This year’s CATArt Poster 
Contest theme is “Post Cards from CATA” and submissions are due by October 31st.  The mobile 
app is available for passes and the mobile ticket validators are active on all CATA fixed-route 
vehicles.     
 
Mr. Pribulka inquired about feedback on Penn State football shuttles for parking.  Mr. Spychalski 
had no feedback to report. 
 


b. Centre County Economic Development Partnership  
 
Mr. Squier discussed the incorporated partnership between public and private entities for Happy 
Valley Ag Ventures that is a consortium effort that will begin in 2020.  Discussion followed on 
engaging AgriTourism. 
   
Ms. Dininni noted appreciation for the initiative.  She noted concerns on past discussions on 
economic development partnerships and asked for clarification on relationship of entities and 
endeavor.  Mr. Squier discussed recruitment, retention and growth of companies along with 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 7, 2019 
Page 2 


agritourism and entrepreneurial behavior.  It was clarified that CBICC is staffed, whereas CCEDP 
is not.  Discussion followed on the emphasis of marketing and investment.  Mr. Pribulka clarified 
the mechanics of the partnership and established mission.  The agreement process, designated 
funds, history and previous funding conditions were discussed.  The CCEDP’s evaluative approach 
to economic development retention and expansion projects was what the Board reviewed recently 
and informally endorsed.  This sets the framework for future requests such as the one for approval 
at this meeting.  Discussion followed on the concern for sustainability focus and other 
considerations as noted.  The approval would be for unrestricted funds invested locally.  Discussion 
followed on comingling concerns at a future summit meeting; workforce preparedness initiatives; 
and core skills.  Mr. Pribulka noted a meeting notice will go out closer to the meeting date for early 
next year.  Mr. Squire expressed the importance for growth in agriculture within Centre County.   
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the appropriation of $25,000 of the 
Chamber of Business and Industry of Centre County for the Centre County Economic Development 
Partnership.  Mr. Killian seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 


 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.   


Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of September 
16, 2019.  Mr. Killian seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 


VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 


1. REVIEW OF DRAFT ZONING AND SUBDIVISION & LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the history of the Zoning and SALDO ordinance amendments.  Mr. Stryker 
asked for clarification of changes.  Discussion followed on amendments and consistencies made. 
Ms. Dininni noted appreciation of everyone’s time on the documents.  Ms. Dininni expressed that 
she is interested in continuing discussion on ways to make the code more “green.”  Discussion 
followed on viewing of the finalized document and advertisements. The Board discussed the 
process to amend the Terraced Streetscape District.   
 
No action was taken on this item. 
 


VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 


1. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Acceptance of Treasure’s Report for July  
b. Voucher Report for August 
c. 2019-C10 Pay Application - Microsurfacing:  $20,674.00 
d. Sponsorship Request – Purple Lizard Scotia Map, Clearwater Conservancy 


 
Mr. Killian moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda and accept the 
Treasurer’s Report.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Modricker noted Item C is for Sealcoating and not Microsurfacing.  The amount is correct. 
 
The donation amount was clarified for the Scotia Map at $500.00 in response to Mr. Stryker’s 
inquiry. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 7, 2019 
Page 3 


2. SUBDIVISION AND REPLOT OF TAX PARCELS 24-4-67 AND 24-4-67C – REQUEST FOR 
WAIVER 


 
Ms. Wargo reviewed the application. 
 
Mr. Stryker moved that the Board of Supervisors grant the waiver of Chapter 22, Subdivision and 
Land Development, Section 303, Review of the Preliminary Plan for the subdivision and replot plan 
for tax parcels 24-4-67 and 24-4-67C.  Mr. Killian seconded the motion. 
 
Clarification was made that public input would be done at one time for both parcels.  Ms. Dininni 
noted her opposition.  Discussion followed on planned approval. 
 
Mr. Sepp discussed the 3 separate plans and waiver request to remove the process for the 
subdivision.  The residential subdivision will be done in one phase and not multiply phased out.  
Ms. Strickland noted maps showing the plans would be helpful.  It was clarified that the traffic impact 
study would be reviewed by the Board at the same time as the development plan.  
  
The motion passed 3 to 2 with Ms. Dininni and Ms. Strickland dissenting. 
 
Mr. Miller called for a 5 minute recess. 
 


       3.  FINAL PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT – THE YARDS AT OLD 
STATE  


Mr. Pribulka presented a brief summary as provided with the agenda.  Mr. Sepp did a presentation 
on requested amendments.  Open space area was reviewed.  Discussion on minor changes in 
response to a Board member’s question.  Further discussion followed on lighting and other minor 
changes. 
 
Mr. Killian moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the amendment to The Cottages at State 
College Planned Residential Development Final Plan.  Mr. Stryker seconded.  The motion passed 
4 to 1 with Ms. Dininni dissenting. 
 


      4. AUTHORIZATION FOR PENNDOT MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION FUND GRANT 
APPLICATION FOR STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT IN PINE GROVE MILLS 


Mr. Modricker introduced the item and the proposed scope of work for the grant application. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the submittal of a PennDOT Multimodal 
Transportation Improvement Fund grant application for streetscape improvement in Pine Grove 
Mills.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  
  
Discussion followed on the proposed sidewalk on Water Street and the lighting proposed. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 


 
       5. DRAFT PERSONNEL POLICY AMENDMENT – DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 


Mr. Pribulka reviewed the draft policy that has been reviewed by the Township’s Human Resource 
attorney. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 7, 2019 
Page 4 


Mr. Stryker moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize a resolution for public hearing 
amending the Personnel Policy Manual amending the Drug Free Workplace Policy.  Ms. Dininni 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 


       6.  BOARD MEMBER REQUEST – LETTER OF INQUIRY TO THE DEPARTMENT OF 
CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 


 
Ms. Dininni reviewed the request for inquiry. 
 
Mr. Stryker moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the Township Manager to submit a 
letter to the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources inquiring about their plans for a 
parking area in Pine Grove Mills.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 


        7. AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC RESPONSE ON THE PINE HALL TRADITIONAL TOWN 
DEVELOPMENT GENERAL MASTER PLAN APPROVAL 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the item.  Noted, after approval of the Master Plan, two notices for appeals were 
received.  Details followed on the process.  A draft letter was provided to the Board for review that 
was updated from the agenda version to meet advertising requirements. 
 
Mr. Stryker moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Board of Supervisors’ response to 
the Pine Hall Traditional Town Development General Master Plan Approval.  Mr. Killian seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Miller had a discussion on response to media inquiries.  He suggested handling anything to do 
with litigation so that there will be consistency on responses.  
  
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors nominate Steve Miller to be the recipient of media 
inquiries that are general about this plan and nominate Dave Pribulka to receive media inquiries 
in regard to litigation about this Plan.  Mr. Killian seconded the motion.  Both representatives 
accepted the responsibility.  The motion passed unanimously. 


 
VIII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 


 
1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS 


a. Public Services & Environmental Committee.  Mr. Stryker reviewed two agenda items.   The 
first item was a report by Pam Adams on greenhouse gas inventory that provided details that 
did not include emissions data from Penn State due to Penn State having their own greenhouse 
gas inventory.  The second item was a discussion on recommendations proposed to change 
pickup times for recycling and refuse for summer months due to heat issues.  Mr. Stryker asked 
for feedback to take back to the committee due to some noted concerns from committee 
members.  Discussion followed on reservations and concerns.  A number of concerns were 
noted such as noise ordinance and weather-related issues.  This change would be effective 
from Memorial Day to Labor Day. 
 
Mr. Pribulka discussed the noise ordinance regulations in more detail.  In summary, the Board 
did not support permitting the start time for refuse collection to be 6:00 a.m. between Memorial 
Day and Labor Day. 
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 7, 2019 
Page 5 


b. Joint Transportation & Land Use Committee and CRPC Meeting.  Ms. Strickland noted from 
the greenhouse gas inventory discussion they had that this is the first step in the climate action 
plan.  The other big discussion was on the CHIP priorities that was already reported to the 
Board. 


 
2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS 


a. Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization Coordinating Committee.  Ms. Strickland 
reported on the SEDA-COG Joint Rail Authority presentation and the Transportation 
Improvement Program projects.  


 
b. Steering Committee – Parks & Recreation Regional Comp Plan.  Ms. Dininni reported on the 


worksession that was held.  Draft Recommendations were received regarding core themes for 
Parks.  Details followed on noted concerns.  The recommendations will be forwarded to Board 
members per request.   
 


c. Solar PPA Working Group.  Agenda was provided with the packet.  Mr. Pribulka stated to 
forward any questions to him and he will relay them to Mr. Endresen for a response. 


 
3. STAFF REPORTS 
 


a. Township Manager.  Mr. Pribulka presented the report as provided in the agenda packet.  
Participation in United Way Day of Caring consisted of tree work, concrete laying, and 
landscaping.  Ms. Strickland, Ms. Dininni and the Manager attended a kickoff meeting for the 
CBICC and Central PA Convention & Visitors Bureau Agritourism initiative.  Attended a meeting 
of the Non-Uniformed Pension Advisory Committee on a draft Investment Policy Statement 
(IPS); this will come before the Board at a future regular meeting and a possible request of 
Board member participation.  Provided to the Board were Actuarial Valuation for the Police 
Pension Plan ratios and funding track goal to be fully funded by 2030.  The deadline for Board 
members to RSVP to the Manager for the Centre County Association of Township Officials 
Annual Fall Convention is October 10th.  Noted, the Township is invited to these events but is 
not a member of the PA State Association of Township Supervisors who hosts these events.  
Ms. Martin reported the Internship Program is now available on the website for those interested 
in applying as well as noted qualifications and opportunities.  


 
b. Public Works Director.  Mr. Modricker reported on highlights that were included with the report.  


A public meeting will be held at College Township on October 30th in conjunction with the 
Township’s revised Pollutant Reduction Plan (PRP).   The next progress meeting is October 
17th for the Township’s renovations to the Administration Building - construction expected to 
start closer to the end of the month.  Bids opened on October 1st for the Public Works 
Maintenance Facility; low bids exceeded budget for the four trades (general, plumbing, 
electrical, mechanical); staff is evaluating options and will bring to the Board at a future meeting 
for discussion.  The next Tree Commission Meeting is October 21st that is advertised for public 
hearing on tree removals.  MS4 required permit inspection was conducted on Oct 2nd; reported 
not aware of any deficiencies.  Maintenance and project updates.  A request for proposals was 
issued for professional engineering services that are due by October 15th for the Science Park 
Road/Sandy Drive contract. 
 
Discussion followed on bid process and over budgeting in response to Mr. Stryker’s questions.  
Mr. Pribulka noted the budget meetings are November 12 and 14, 2019, to discuss budget 
items. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, October 7, 2019 
Page 6 


c. Planning & Zoning Director.  Ms. Wargo reported that the September 23rd meeting was 
cancelled.  The next meeting is scheduled for October 14th.  Update on projects as provided.  
On schedule for the public hearing for the adoption of the Zoning and SALDO ordinances on 
October 21st.    The Zoning Administrator and Community Planner will be in attendance at that 
meeting.  The Manager and Planning/Zoning Director will not be in attendance.    Details 
followed on Zoning/SALDO special meetings in September.  Next Zoning Hearing Board is 
scheduled for October 22nd.  Mr. Pribulka expanded the discussion to state the Board’s regular 
meeting on October 21st overlaps with meetings that he, Ms. Martin and Ms. Wargo will be 
attending at the same time.  Acting as Township Manager will be Mr. Modricker.  Ms. Yagle will 
be present at the meeting on October 21st. 


 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD  


Ms. Dininni did a follow-up with Ruth Cooper regarding the low mow/no mow concerns.  The information 
will be forwarded to Mr. Miller. 


X. CALENDAR ITEMS 


a. Coffee and Conversation, Saturday, October 12th, hosted by Ferguson Township at Tom Tudek 
Memorial Park, 8:00 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. 


b. Open House for the Bicycle Implementation Plan, Wednesday, October 30, 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.* 
*Updated:  6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 


c. Trick or Treat Night in Ferguson Township, Thursday, October 31st, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
d. Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan, Tuesday, October 15th . 
 


XI. Adjournment 


Mr. Miller called for adjournment.  With no further business to come before the before the Board of 
Supervisors,   Ms. Dininni motioned to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 


       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


      David Pribulka, Township Manager 
      For the Board of Supervisors 


 


 


 


 





























































10/15/2019


1


LED Lighting
An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


Ron Seybert, P.E.


Ferguson Township Engineer


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


2018 STIC 


Year End Report







10/15/2019


2


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


• Located in State College area
− Population about 20,000


− 95 miles of streets


• 20 Traffic Signals and counting…….
− All Signals have all LED Indications (R/Y/G/Ped)


− 6 Signals have LED Luminaires – first install in 2008


• All new decorative lights are LED


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


LED Street 
Lighting in 
TTD District 


Prestwick 
Boulevard
2014







10/15/2019


3


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


Why Change to LED from HPS???


• Better Reliability


• Better Lighting


• Save Money


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


Better Reliability


• Warranty


− HPS Fixtures have 1 to 3 year


− LED Fixtures have 5 to 10 year


• Both have about 20 year fixture life


− Over life of fixture, LEDs don’t need re‐lamped


− Less calls for service/dark intersections


• Ferguson 11 years experience – no LED luminaire failures yet


− Watch for LED degradation







10/15/2019


4


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


Better Lighting


• Better efficiency
− 350 Watts HPS = 114 Watts LED (depends on fixture)


− Less fixtures


• Better light distribution 
− LED distribution more uniform


− No hot spots


• Cleaner light
− White vs. Amber


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


LED Lighting 
Example –


Blue Course 
Drive and 
Havershire 
Boulevard
2014







10/15/2019


5


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


HPS Lighting 
Example –


Blue Course 
Drive and 
West College 
Avenue


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


LED Lighting 
Example –


Blue Course 
Drive and 
Westerly 
Parkway 
2008







10/15/2019


6


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


HPS Lighting 
Example –


Blue Course 
Drive and 
Martin Street


First Retrofit


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


Lighting Design


• Consultant


• Vendor


• Predicts light levels 


• Follow recommended 
standards







10/15/2019


7


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


New Install Cost Comparison:
Notes:
• Assumes 2 fixtures at Intersection


• 20 year comparison


• HPS re‐lamped 4 times


• LED fixture costs still falling


• Elec rate assumed at $0.10/kWh


• 112LED provides more light than 
250W HPS (conservative)


Costs
250W 
HPS


112 LED


Initial Installation


Fixture cost $500 $1,700


Installation cost $200 $200


Re-lamping


Material cost $200 $0


Installation cost $800 $0


Operating


Electrical cost x 20 years $4,380 $1,997


Total $6,080 $3,897


Save Money


LED Lighting – An Old Innovation Gaining Popularity


Retrofit Cost Case:
Notes:
• Int. of Blue Course & Martin


• 20 year comparison


• HPS re‐lamped 4 times


• Elec rate assumed at $0.10/kWh


• Two 112LED provided more light 
than three 250W HPS


• Break even = 10 years


Retrofit of Intersection
250W 
HPS


112 LED


Initial Installation


Fixture cost $0 $1,700


Installation cost $0 $1,000


Re-lamping


Material cost $200 $0


Installation cost $800 $0


Operating


Electrical cost x 20 years $6,570 $1,997


Total $7,570 $4,697


Why Change to LED from HPS – Save Money
















RESOLUTION NO. __________ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, 


AMENDING THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL BY AMENDING 


SECTION 34, DRUG FREE WORKPLACE; AND SECTION 35, DRUG & ALCOHOL 


TESTING. 


BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of the Township of Ferguson, Centre 
County, Pennsylvania, amend the Ferguson Township Personnel Policy Manual as follows:


A. Section 34, Drug Free Workplace, be amended as follows:


Added language pertaining to the Pennsylvania Marijuana Act legalizing the use of
medical marijuana within the Commonwealth under certain limited circumstances.


B. Section 35, Drug & Alcohol Testing, be amended as follows:


Added language to be compliant with the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration in
Part 2, Types of Testing, A. Pre-employment and B. Random Testing.


ADOPTED, this 21st day of October 2019.


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 


        By:______________________________ 


       [ S E A L ]  


    Steve Miller, Chairman 


ATTEST: 


By:__________________________________ 
David G. Pribulka, Secretary 








TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 


Subject: 
Drug Free Workplace 


Date of Adoption: 
April 20, 2015 


Section Page No. 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform 


Date of Revision: 34.0 34-1


{DocNo=00650065.1 }


DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 


1. In accordance with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Township is mandated
to establish a policy consistent with provisions of the Act regarding a drug free
workplace.


2. It is the policy of the Township of Ferguson to prohibit and deem unlawful the
manufacture, distribution, digestion, possession or use of a controlled substance in
the workplace as defined by Section 102 of the Controlled Substance Act (21 U.S.C.
802).  Employees engaging in such unlawful acts shall face appropriate personnel
action up to and including termination in accordance with Section 29 of the
Personnel Policy.


3. All employees shall be provided a copy of this policy and the Drug Free Workplace
Act of 1988.  New employees will be required to acknowledge this policy and to
abide by the terms of the policy.


4. Any employee who is convicted of any criminal drug related crime occurring in the
workplace shall notify the Township Manager in writing of the violation no later than
five (5) calendar days after such conviction.


5. The Township shall be required to notify the appropriate contracting State or Federal
agency in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice from the
employee of the violation, or conviction, of the drug related crime.


6. The Pennsylvania legislature passed the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act in
2016, legalizing the use of medical marijuana within the Commonwealth under
certain limited circumstances.  As a result, the Township recognizes the lawful right
to utilize medical marijuana outside of the workplace and under certain limited
circumstances, if lawfully certified to do so and pursuant to the provisions stated
herein. However, marijuana remains an illegal Schedule I controlled substance
under Federal law, including Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration regulations.
As a result, all use or possession of marijuana in the workplace, whether medicinal
or recreational, is strictly prohibited. Furthermore, use of marijuana is prohibited in all
circumstances for Township CDL drivers and law enforcement officers, including off
duty medicinal use provided for under state law.


If a Non-CDL/Non-law enforcement employee receives certification as a licensed
user of medical marijuana in the Commonwealth, the employee must notify the
Employer of the certification, or updates to any certification, and provide a copy of
the certification immediately.  After notification, the Employer will meet with the







TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 


Subject: 
Drug Free Workplace 


Date of Adoption: 
April 20, 2015 


Section Page No. 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform 


Date of Revision: 34.0 34-2


{DocNo=00650065.1 }


employee to discuss the parameters of the employee’s usage of medical marijuana, 
compliance with Township policies, and the employee’s ability to perform duties in a 
safe and efficient manner. The employee’s job functions will be a factor in such 
discussion. For example, the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act provides that 
patients may be prohibited by an employer from performing any duty which could 
result in a public health or safety risk while under the influence of medical marijuana, 
and may be prohibited from performing any task deemed to be life threatening. 
Under the Act, a patient also may not perform any job duties at heights or in 
confined spaces, while under the influence of medical marijuana. The Employer will 
also determine whether the medical condition which necessitates the usage of 
medical marijuana constitutes a disability under Americans with Disabilities Act, 
thereby requiring an interactive discussion of the employee’s ability to perform job 
functions and any potential reasonable accommodations.  


While the Pennsylvania Medical Marijuana Act has legalized the usage of medical 
marijuana for certified medical use, the Township is not required to accommodate 
the use or possession of medical marijuana on the property or premises of any place 
of employment, nor is the Township mandated to allow an employee to be under the 
influence of medical marijuana while in the workplace, or work while under the 
influence of medical marijuana when the employee's conduct falls below the 
standard of care normally accepted for that position. As such, all employees, 
whether certified as a user of medical marijuana or not, are subject to the 
prohibitions in Section 29 of the Personnel Policy. 


7. In lieu of or in addition to appropriate personnel actions, the Township Manager, or
his designee, may require an employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal,
State, or local health, law enforcement or other appropriate agency.


8. The Township of Ferguson has in place an Employee Assistance Program that
includes assistance to those employees with drug and alcohol problems.  The
program is available through the Center for Mental Health, located at 3939 South
Atherton Street, employees may call (814) 867-0670.








 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-1 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING 


I.  PURPOSE: 


A. Ferguson Township has a commitment to provide a safe and healthful 
workplace for its employees and to ensure quality services to our residents.  
B.  The purpose of this Policy is to promote a safe and healthful 
workplace; to assist those employees who are in need of assistance through 
either counseling or rehabilitation; and to discipline and/or discharge 
employees who violate the policy. 


C.  The Township incorporates herein Section 34 (Drug Free Workplace 
Policy).  


II. OBJECTIVES: 


A.  Assure that the workplace is free from the effects of drug and/or alcohol use and 
that employees are fit to perform their work duties and report for work regularly 
and on time. 


B.  Comply with applicable state and federal law. 


III. SUBSTANCES INCLUDED IN THE TESTING POLICY: 


A. The minimum testing program will include the following substances present in 
the body: alcohol, cocaine, phencyclidine (PCP), marijuana, opiates of any type, 
and amphetamines.  The type and quantity of substances included in the testing 
program may be expanded or changed at any time as required by law or DOT 
regulation. 


IV. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REGULATIONS CONCERNING TESTING 
OF CDL DRIVERS: 


The Department of Transportation (DOT) has established mandatory drug 
and alcohol testing regulations that affect certain municipal drivers and driver 
applicants.  Ferguson Township is committed to comply with these 
regulations.  Accordingly, the following will apply to all employees required to 
have a CDL license and applicants for such positions. 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-2 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


1. Employee Responsibilities/Prohibited Conduct 


A.  The following shall be considered “prohibited conduct” for purposes of this                                        
policy: 


No CDL driver shall report for duty or remain on duty while having an alcohol 
concentration of .04 or greater. 


No CDL driver shall be on duty or operate a commercial motor vehicle while 
the driver possesses alcohol. 


No CDL driver shall use alcohol while performing safety-sensitive functions. 


No CDL driver shall perform safety-sensitive functions within four (4) hours 
after using alcohol. 


No CDL driver required to take a post-accident alcohol test shall use alcohol 
for eight (8) hours following the accident or until he or she undergoes a post-
accident alcohol test, whichever occurs first. 


No CDL driver shall refuse to submit to a post-accident, random, reasonable 
suspicion, return-to-duty, or follow-up alcohol or drug test. 


No CDL driver shall report for duty or remain on duty when the driver uses 
any controlled substance except when use is pursuant to the instructions of a 
physician who has advised the driver that the substance does not adversely 
affect the driver’s ability to operate a commercial motor vehicle. 


B.  If a driver engages in “prohibited conduct”, the driver is not qualified to drive a 
commercial motor vehicle and shall be immediately removed from service as time 
off without pay and referred to the Substance Abuse Professional.  Ferguson 
Township may also take disciplinary action against the driver up to and including 
termination. 


C.  No Supervisor having actual knowledge that a CDL driver has violated any provision 
of Part A above shall permit the CDL driver to work. Supervisors must immediately 
report any violations of Part A above to the Township Manager. 


 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-3 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


2.  Types of Testing 


A. Pre-Employment 


i. All applicants for CDL driver positions must submit to a pre-
employment drug and alcohol test. An applicant for a CDL position who tests  
positive for the presence of drugs or alcohol, as regulated by this policy and 
FMCSA regulations, will not be considered for employment with Ferguson 
Township. 


ii. Applicants for CDL driver positions shall consent and authorize 
Ferguson Township to obtain information from their prior employers for the 
prior three years, as set forth in FMCSA regulations.   


iii. An applicant for a CDL driver position will not be considered for 
employment if Ferguson Township is notified that the applicant has tested 
positive for either alcohol or a controlled substance, or has refused to be 
tested, within the preceding three years, or refuses to consent to authorize 
Ferguson Township to obtain the information. 


B.  Random Testing 


i. Each year, Ferguson Township will use a random process to select at 
least 50% of its CDL drivers, who will be tested for the use of controlled 
substances.  Additionally, each year 25% of its CDL drivers will be randomly 
tested for alcohol use.  Drivers selected on a random basis for testing will be 
required to supply a urine sample for controlled substance testing and submit 
to a legally accepted test for alcohol. Random testing is performed pursuant 
to FMCSA regulations.  


   C. Reasonable Suspicion testing 


i. Reasonable suspicion testing is performed when supervisors have 
reasonable cause to suspect an employee of drug or alcohol use.  The 
conduct necessitating testing, if at all feasible, shall have been witnessed by 
at least two supervisors.  However, if only one supervisor is available, only 
that supervisor need witness the conduct.  Each Supervisor will receive 
training in the detection of probable drug and alcohol use by observing a 
driver’s behavior. Specific reasons for reasonable suspicion testing include 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-4 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


physical evidence of illicit substances, patterns of erratic or abnormal 
behavior, disorientation or confusion, and an inability to complete routine 
tasks. 


   D. Mandatory Post-Accident Testing 


i. CDL drivers will provide urine specimens for drug testing as soon as 
possible after a commercial vehicle accident, but no later than thirty-two (32) 
hours after the accident. 


ii. Drivers must be tested for alcohol as soon as possible after a 
commercial vehicle accident, but no later than eight (8) hours after the 
accident.  A driver shall not consume alcohol until he has been tested, or 
after the eight (8) hour period. 


iii. An accident is defined as involving the following with a commercial 
motor vehicle: 


 1) A vehicle related fatality is involved; or 


2) The driver receives a citation under state or local law for a 
moving violation, and: 


a) Bodily injury that requires a person to be transported 
away from the scene for medical treatments, or 


b) Damage to any vehicle that requires the vehicle to be towed 
away from the scene by a tow truck or another vehicle. 


iv. If, as a consequence of an accident, a driver is seriously injured and 
cannot provide a specimen at the time of the accident, he/she must provide 
the necessary authorization for obtaining hospital records and other 
documents that will indicate whether there were any controlled substances or 
alcohol in his/her system at the time of the accident. 


   E. Return To Duty Testing 


i. If Ferguson Township in its discretion, offers a CDL-driver re-
employment after the driver has been referred to an alcohol and substance 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-5 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


abuse professional and the CDL-driver has undergone all recommended 
treatment, the driver must successfully complete a test for alcohol and/or 
drugs prior to being returned to duty.  The driver will pay for all costs related 
to the Return of Duty Testing. 


   F. Follow-Up Testing 


i. Any CDL-driver who has returned to duty after a positive alcohol or 
drug test will be subject to unannounced follow-up tests for a period not to 
exceed sixty (60) months.  There will be at least 6 follow-up tests given during 
the first 12 months.  The driver will pay for all costs related to the Follow-up 
Testing. 


   G. Refusal To Test 


i. Refusal to submit to the types of drug and alcohol tests employed by 
Ferguson Township will be grounds for refusal to hire CDL- driver applicants 
and to terminate employment of existing drivers.  A refusal to test is defined 
to be conduct that would obstruct the proper administration of a test.  
Refusing to sign step 2 of the alcohol form is considered a refusal to test.  A 
delay in providing a urine, breath, or saliva specimen could be considered a 
refusal.  If a driver cannot provide a sufficient quantity of urine or breath, 
he/she will be evaluated by a physician of the Township’s choice.  If the 
physician cannot find a legitimate medical explanation for the inability to 
provide a specimen (either breath or urine), it will be considered a refusal to 
test.  In that circumstance the CDL-driver has violated one of the prohibitions 
of the regulations. 


  3. Test Procedures 


   A. Drug Urinalysis 


i. Drug testing will be performed through urinalysis.  Urinalysis will test 
for the presence of drugs and/or metabolites of the controlled substances 
outlined in this policy. 


ii. The urinalysis procedure starts with the collection of a urine specimen.  
Urine specimens will be submitted to a Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA) - certified laboratory for testing.  As part 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-6 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


of the collection process, the specimen provided will be split into two vials:  a 
primary vial and a secondary vial.  The SAMHSA - certified laboratory will 
perform initial screenings on all primary vials.  In the event that the primary 
specimen tests positive, a confirmation test of that specimen will be 
performed before being reported by the laboratory to the MRO as a positive. 


iii. All laboratory results will be reported by the laboratory to a Medical 
Review Officer (MRO) designated by Ferguson Township.  Negative test 
results shall be reported by the MRO to Ferguson Township.  Before 
reporting a positive test result to Ferguson Township, the MRO will attempt to 
contact the driver to discuss the test result.  If the MRO is unable to contact 
the driver directly, the MRO will contact the program coordinator designated 
in advance by Ferguson Township, who shall, in turn, contact the driver and 
direct the driver to contact the MRO.  Upon being so directed, the driver shall 
contact the MRO immediately or, if after the MRO’s business hours and the 
MRO is unavailable, at the start of the MRO’s next business day.  In the 
MRO’s sole discretion, a determination will be made as to whether a result is 
positive or negative.  If, after failing to contact the MRO after 5 days, or if the 
driver cannot be contacted at all within 30 days, the MRO may verify the test 
as positive.  After any positive verification the driver may petition the MRO to 
reopen the case for reconsideration. 


iv. Pursuant to DOT regulation, individual test result for driver/applicants 
and drivers will be released to Ferguson Township and will be kept strictly 
confidential unless consent for the release of the test results has been 
obtained or if disclosure is authorized or required by law.  Any individual who 
has submitted to drug testing in compliance with this policy is entitled to 
receive the results of such testing upon timely written request. 


v. An individual testing positive may make a request of the MRO to have 
the secondary vial tested.  The secondary vial must be tested by a different 
SAMHSA - certified lab then tested the primary specimen.  The individual 
making the request for a test of the second specimen must pre-pay all costs 
associated with the test.  The request for testing of a secondary specimen is 
timely if it is made to the MRO within 72 hours of the individual being notified 
by the MRO of a positive test result. 


 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-7 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


   B. Alcohol Test 


i. Ferguson Township will perform alcohol testing using a device that is 
on the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration’s (NHTSA) Conforming 
Products List (CPL) and meets the DOT’s testing requirements.  This may be 
a breath testing device or a saliva-based testing device, and may be provided 
through a vendor or agent.  The device will be operated by a technician who 
is certified and trained on the specific device he or she will be operating.  The 
driver shall report to the alcohol testing site as notified by Ferguson 
Township.  The driver shall follow all instructions given by the alcohol 
technician. 


ii. Any initial test indicating an alcohol concentration of .02 or greater will 
be confirmed on an evidential breath testing device (EBT) operated by a 
breath alcohol technician (BAT).  The confirmation test will be performed no 
sooner than 15 minutes and no later than 30 minutes following the 
completion of the initial test.  In the event the confirmation test indicates an 
alcohol concentration of .02 to .0399, the driver shall be removed from duty 
for 24 hours without pay.  CDL-drivers with tests indicating an alcohol 
concentration of .04 or greater are considered to have engaged in “prohibited 
conduct”.  All alcohol tests shall be performed just prior to, during, or just after 
duty. 


V.  EDUCATIONAL TRAINING/ASSISTANCE: 


  1. For All Drivers 


A. Ferguson Township will establish a training program and provide 
educational materials which will address alcohol and controlled substances, 
and will review the requirements of this policy and the DOT regulations.  Each 
CDL-driver will sign a statement certifying he/she has received the materials 
required by the DOT regulations. 


2. For Supervisory Personnel:  


A. Supervisory personnel who determine whether or not reasonable 
suspicion exists will complete at least 60 minutes of training on recognizing 
alcohol misuse, and 60 minutes of training on recognizing controlled 
substances use.  The training shall cover the physical, behavioral, speech, 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-8 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


and performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse and use of controlled 
substances. 


  3. Employee Assistance Program: 


A. Ferguson Township has in place an Employee Assistance Program 
that includes assistance to those employees with drug and/or alcohol 
problems.  To access the program, which is provided through Center for 
Mental Health, located at 3939 South Atherton Street, drivers may call (814) 
867-0670.  


B. At any time a CDL-driver has a question regarding this policy and/or 
the DOT regulations, he/she is encouraged to contact the program 
coordinator designated by the Township. 


 


VI.  TEST RESULT PROCEDURES:  


 1. Notification of Test Results: 


A. Ferguson Township shall notify its drivers and driver applicants of the 
results of tests conducted pursuant to the DOT regulations.  Drivers who test 
positive will be advised specifically as to what drug or what amount of alcohol 
that was discovered. 


  2. Record Keeping: 


A. All of the records relating to the administration and results of 
municipality’s alcohol and drug testing program for its drivers will be 
maintained in accordance with DOT regulations. 


B. There shall be a Medical Review Officer who is a licensed doctor of 
medicine or osteopathy with knowledge of drug abuse disorders.  Ferguson 
Township shall establish a contract with the MRO to review alcohol and drug 
testing results in accordance with DOT regulations.  The Medical Review 
Officer shall be the sole custodian of individual test results.  The Medical 
Review Officer shall retain the reports of individual test results in accordance 
with DOT regulations. 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-9 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


C. Ferguson Township shall maintain an annual (calendar) year summary 
of the records related to the administration and results of the testing program 
for its drivers under the DOT regulations. 


VII.  RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: 


1. Ferguson Township reserves the right to add to, change, or modify this 
policy at its sole discretion, and to terminate any employee at any time, 
except as those rights are restricted by law.  Ferguson Township accepts no 
liability in the event of an alleged breach of any of the policies or procedures 
set forth in this policy.   


2. Nothing in this policy shall be construed to limit the authority of the 
Municipality to impose discipline, including discharge, as it shall determine, so 
long as the minimums set forth in this policy are satisfied. 


VIII. LIMITATIONS OF SEVERABILITY: 


1. Each section, paragraph, part, term and/or provision of this Policy shall 
be considered severable.  If for any reason, any section, paragraph, part, 
term, and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in 
conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation, such shall not affect the 
remaining portion, sections, paragraphs, parts, terms and/or provisions of this 
policy. 


IX.  THIS IS NOT A CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENT: 


1. This policy and this document (or any accompanying document 
executed or delivered pursuant to or in connection with the policy) are not 
intended to confer any contractual or other rights or claims in favor of a 
Ferguson Township employee. 


X.  DEFINITIONS: 


1. The following definitions are for some terms used in this policy.  Other 
terms are as defined elsewhere within this policy or as defined within State 
and/or Federal Law. 







 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 


PERSONNEL RULES & REGULATIONS 
 


 
Subject: 


Drug & Alcohol Testing 


 
Date of Adoption: 


April 20, 2015 


 
Section 


 
Page No. 


 


Employees Affected: 
Non-Uniform Employees 
Required to Hold A CDL 


License 


 


Date of Revision: 
 


 
 


35.0 


 
 


35-10 


 
 
 


{DocNo=00650039.1 } 


A. Alcohol Concentration - the alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in 
terms of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an 
evidential breath test required by law. 


B. Driver - an employee or applicant for employment who is required to 
have a Commercial Drivers License (CDL) to perform the duties of the job. 


C. Safety Sensitive Function - any of the following: 


i. waiting at the Township facility 


ii. performing pre-trip inspections or servicing the commercial motor 
vehicle 


iii. driving the commercial motor vehicle 


iv. being on or in the commercial motor vehicle 


v. loading or unloading, supervising the loading or unloading, giving 
receipts for the load, or remaining in readiness to operate a commercial 
motor vehicle 


vi. performing duties and services at an accident scene 


vii. repairing, getting help, or staying with a disabled vehicle 







